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Commissioner’s message
Welcome to the Annual Report of
the Natural Resources Commission
IRU¿VFDO,WKDVEHHQDQRWKHU
busy and productive year for the
Commission, with involvement
LQVRPHKLJKO\VLJQL¿FDQWQDWXUDO
UHVRXUFHPDQDJHPHQWUHODWHGLVVXHV
During the year, our work fell broadly
within three areas: native forestry,
ZDWHUDQGRSHUDWLRQDODXGLWLQJ
In the forestry area, we provided
advice to Government on outstanding
settings for the Coastal Integrated
Forestry Operations Approval, which
was accepted by the Government
DIWHUSXEOLFFRQVXOWDWLRQ7KH
revised settings provided increased
protections for koalas and for
WKUHDWHQHGHFRORJLFDOFRPPXQLWLHV
We also undertook an assessment
of the accuracy of mapping for old
growth forests; an assessment which
indicated that newer technology
had potential to greatly improve the
UHOLDELOLW\RIPDSSLQJ:HDQWLFLSDWH
further mapping will occur in future
years, the outcome of which will
enable the Government to meet its
twin commitments to native forestry of
no net change of wood supply and no
ORVVRIHQYLURQPHQWDOYDOXHV

At the request of the Minister for
Primary Industries, we initiated audits
of NSW’s emergency response
capability for biosecurity emergencies,
and of Local Land Services’
implementation of the biodiversity
UHIRUPVWKDWZHUHLQWURGXFHGLQ
These audits were on-going at the
\HDUHQG
In December 2016, I retired as
Commissioner to allow time to
DGGUHVVVRPHVLJQL¿FDQWSHUVRQDO
KHDOWKUHODWHGLVVXHV,ZDVUH
appointed as Commissioner in
'HFHPEHU'XULQJP\DEVHQFH
%ULDQ*LOOLJDQ¿OOHGWKHUROHZLWK
GLVWLQFWLRQLQDQDFWLQJSRVLWLRQ,
thank Brian for his substantial effort
in bringing to a successful conclusion
a number of important projects, and
for overseeing the initiation of new
SURMHFWV7KHZRUNXQGHUWDNHQE\
the Commission requires teamwork
DPRQJDOORIRXUVWDIIDQGVLJQL¿FDQW
involvement with and co-operation
from stakeholders within and outside
JRYHUQPHQW,DFNQRZOHGJHWKHYHU\
solid efforts of the Commission staff,
led by Executive Director Bryce Wilde,
WKURXJKRXWWKH\HDU

In relation to water, we reviewed
Dr John Keniry AM
three water sharing plans and
Commissioner
recommended that the plans be
renewed with some strengthened
provisions which would improve
environmental outcomes, improve
economic outcomes for water users,
and improve transparency for the
FRPPXQLW\7KH\HDUKDV
VHHQVLJQL¿FDQWUHIRUPLQZDWHU
DGPLQLVWUDWLRQLQ16::KLOVWWKH
Commission has not been directly
involved in this reform, it is likely that
going forward, our role in the oversight
and auditing of water administrative
DUUDQJHPHQWVZLOOEHH[SDQGHG
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What we do
Purpose
The Natural Resources Commission
provides credible, high quality,
independent advice to the NSW
Government on managing natural
resources to improve productivity,
biodiversity, biosecurity and
community well-being across the
VWDWH

Strategic priorities
To achieve the above purpose, the
Commission’s Strategic Plan
2017-18 has established three
strategic priorities:
 Independent advice: Developing
evidence-based practical
solutions and thought leadership
to resolve natural resource
PDQDJHPHQWFKDOOHQJHV
 Brokering and mediation:
Providing cut-through options
and negotiating solutions for
contested issues in a challenging
institutional environment where
VWDNHKROGHUVKROGGLIIHUHQWYLHZV
 Accountability and assurance:
Delivering independent oversight
and assurance to investors and
the community through standards,
performance audits, evaluations
DQGSODQQLQJUHYLHZV

What we do

Values

Established under the Natural
Resources Commission Act 2003, the
Commission has a general function to
advise the Premier and Ministers on
QDWXUDOUHVRXUFHPDQDJHPHQW

The Commission embraces the public
sector core values of:

The general function is supported by
VSHFL¿FIXQFWLRQVLQFOXGLQJ
 auditing, evaluating and
reviewing plans, programs and
organisational performance – for
example, auditing performance of
Local Land Services
 U HYLHZLQJFRPSOH[VFLHQWL¿FDQG
policy issues under legislation or
as requested by Government – for
example, reviewing pest animal
management, water sharing
plans and conducting forest
assessments
 evaluating trials of new
Government initiatives –
for example, evaluating
supplementary pest control in
national parks
 promoting and enabling best
practice – for example, setting
VWDQGDUGVDQGWDUJHWV

 integrity
 trust
 service
 DFFRXQWDELOLW\
The Commission lives these values
through the following behaviours:
 acting professionally with honesty
and impartiality
 placing the public interest over
personal interest
 providing evidence-based, frank,
fearless and transparent advice
 aiming high and continually
learning
 working collaboratively, both inside
and outside the Commission
 listening to our stakeholders and
each other
 building relationships based on
mutual respect
 thinking differently
 relaxing and enjoying working
WRJHWKHU

The Commissioner reports to the
3UHPLHUUHÀHFWLQJRXULQGHSHQGHQFH
DQGZKROHRIJRYHUQPHQWSHUVSHFWLYH
However, many of the issues the
Commission deals with are of more
VLJQL¿FDQFHDQGYLVLELOLW\WRRWKHU
0LQLVWHUVDQGVWDNHKROGHUV
The Commission is only one source
RISRWHQWLDODGYLFHIRU*RYHUQPHQW
To best understand the nature of
complex issues, the Commission uses
transparent collaborative approaches,
accesses the best available
knowledge, retains the highest quality
SHRSOHDQGHQFRXUDJHVLQQRYDWLRQ

Natural
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Summary of achievements in 2017-18
Forestry

Audit and assurance

 The NSW Government accepted
the Commission’s advice on the
outstanding Coastal Integrated
Forestry Operations Approval
VHWWLQJV

 Commenced an audit of NSW’s
emergency response capability
for biosecurity emergencies and
natural disasters that impact on
agriculture and animal welfare,
DQGGHOLYHUHGSUHOLPLQDU\¿QGLQJV
WRDJHQFLHVDQGWKH0LQLVWHU

 Provided advice on whether
Government could reassess old
growth forests and rainforests
on the north coast state forests
to meet the Government’s twin
commitments of no net change
of wood supply and no loss of
HQYLURQPHQWDOYDOXHV

Water
 Reviewed three water sharing
plans due to expire in 2018 and
2019, and recommended that
these plans be replaced with new
PDQDJHPHQWSODQV

 Commenced an audit of Local
Land Services’ implementation
of the biodiversity reforms, and
GHOLYHUHGSUHOLPLQDU\¿QGLQJVWR
WKHDJHQF\DQGWKH0LQLVWHU
 Evaluated the Catchment Action
NSW funding for natural resource
management, provided by
WKH2I¿FHRI(QYLURQPHQWDQG
Heritage, to provide assurance to
Government about the Local Land
6HUYLFHV¶GHOLYHU\RIWKLVIXQGLQJ

Other advice

 (
 YDOXDWHGWKHHI¿FLHQF\DQG
effectiveness of the Environmental
Trust’s Linking Landscapes
project, and provided advice on
funding future projects by the
7UXVW
 Conducted a review of regional
SHVWDQLPDOPDQDJHPHQWSODQV
These plans were prepared by
Local Land Services as a result
of the Government accepting
most of the Commission’s
recommendations on the review
of pest animal management,
including the development of
regional pest animal management
SODQV
 Provided advice on whether
¿YHFRDVWDOGHYHORSPHQW
proposals were consistent with
the requirements of the State
Environmental Planning Policy No.
77 – Coastal Protection

 The NSW Government accepted
the Commission’s recommendation
that the Supplementary Pest
Control Program continue and be
H[SDQGHGEH\RQGWKHWULDOSKDVH
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Audits and reviews

30

Audits and reviews

35

30

29

30

25

15

Full-time equivalent employees

20

19

19

15

50% Female senior executives

10

5

60

0

Places visited by staff

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Places visited by the Commission staff
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Forestry
Providing cut-through
options and negotiating
solutions for contested
issues

Government accepts
Commission’s advice
on outstanding Coastal
IFOA settings
The NSW Government adopted the
Commission’s recommended settings
for the Coastal IFOA remake and
released the draft IFOA for public
FRQVXOWDWLRQLQ0D\

In 2017-18:
 the NSW Governmnet accepted the
Commission’s advice on outstanding
Coastal Integrated Forestry
Operations Approval settings
 the Commission provided advice on
remapping old growth forests and
rainforests in state forests
 the Commission was tasked to
oversee additional old growth
reassessments
 the Commission was requested to
deliver an independent research
report to better understand
how koalas are responding to
UHJHQHUDWLRQKDUYHVWLQJ

Integrated forestry operations approval
(IFOA) outlines the conditions and
settings for harvesting timber on NSW
state forests and Crown timber land,
including provisions for the protection
of environment and conservation of
WKUHDWHQHGVSHFLHV
In February 2012, the NSW
Government announced the remake
of IFOA for the Eden, North East and
Southern coastal region of NSW, with
the aim of delivering a single new
&RDVWDO,)2$
The Premier sought the Commission’s
advice on outstanding settings for the
new Coastal IFOA, and on remapping
ROGJURZWKIRUHVWVDQGUDLQIRUHVWV

8

Since 2014, the Environment
Protection Authority, Forestry
Corporation of NSW and the
Department of Primary Industries have
been working together to develop
VHWWLQJVIRUWKHQHZ&RDVWDO,)2$
These parties came to an agreement
RQPRVWEXWQRWDOORIWKHVHWWLQJV
In July 2016 through a Terms of
Reference, the Premier asked
the Commission to review the
outstanding settings for the new
&RDVWDO,)2$7KH&RPPLVVLRQZDV
to independently advise on the extent
to which the proposed IFOA settings
would, or would not, deliver the
Government’s twin commitments of no
erosion of environmental values and
QRQHWFKDQJHWRZRRGVXSSO\
In November 2016, the Commission
reported that the intended outcomesbased approach to the Coastal IFOA
UHÀHFWVFXUUHQWEHVWSUDFWLFH7KH
DSSURDFKDOLJQVZLWKWKHVFLHQWL¿FDOO\
supported shift to retention forestry
which has the goal of maintaining
a greater diversity of species and
KDELWDWV
The agreed multi-scale landscape
approach, with enhanced permanent
protections for threatened species at
a range of spatial scales, will build
on the existing IFOA environmental
SURWHFWLRQV,WZLOODOVRFRPSOHPHQW
the national park system which
extends over 33 percent of the

&RDVWDO,)2$UHJLRQ7UHHUHWHQWLRQ
and threatened species protection
areas will be permanently retained
within clumps and excluded from
KDUYHVWLQJWRSURYLGHKDELWDWIRUIDXQD
This will be in addition to 38 percent of
the existing state forest estate already
permanently excluded from harvesting
LQWKH&RDVWDO,)2$UHJLRQ
The new arrangements allow for
intensive harvesting in some parts
of the forest landscape to meet
the regeneration requirements for
preferred species (primarily blackbutt)
DQGWRLQFUHDVHHI¿FLHQF\LQZRRG
VXSSO\
The Commission recommended a
suite of settings that it considered
went closest to meeting the
objectives and commitments of the
,)2$DWVWDWHVFDOH+RZHYHUWKH
Commission determined, at that time,
that it was not possible to meet the
Government’s twin commitments
around both environmental values
and wood supply, under the expected
cumulative impact of the agreed and
UHFRPPHQGHGVHWWLQJV
6SHFL¿FDOO\DQDO\VLVHVWLPDWHGWKDW
annual high quality wood supply
could decrease in certain wood
supply zones on the north coast
under recommended settings for the
protection of koalas and new mapping
IRUWKUHDWHQHGHFRORJLFDOFRPPXQLWLHV
In addition to the recommended
settings, the Commission suggested
a range of improvements to deliver a
contemporary regulatory framework,
including options to improve clarity
and enforceability, while reducing
costs associated with implementation
DQGFRPSOLDQFH7KH&RPPLVVLRQ
also emphasised the importance of
implementing effective monitoring,
independent oversight, tracking
and timely reporting, and public
FRQVXOWDWLRQ
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Advice on reassessment
of old growth forests and
rainforests
In November 2017 under a
subsequent Terms of Reference,
the Premier asked the Commission
to provide supplementary advice
on whether the NSW Government
could remap and rezone old growth
and rainforests on north coast state
forests, as a way to meet its twin
commitments for environmental values
DQGZRRGVXSSO\
The Commission piloted remapping
old growth and rainforests on 13 sites
in north coast state forests, nominated
by the Environment Protection
Authority and the Forestry Corporation
RI16:
7KH&RPPLVVLRQHQJDJHGWKH2I¿FH
of Environment and Heritage’s
Science Branch to independently
undertake remapping, using existing
peer-reviewed protocols to reassess
old growth and rainforest for private
QDWLYHIRUHVWU\
The Commission found the accuracy
of current mapping could be
VLJQL¿FDQWO\LPSURYHGE\DSSO\LQJ
PRGHUQWHFKQRORJLHVDQGQHZGDWD
The Commission also found the
existing protocols are objective and
can be improved through mandatory
¿HOGZRUNGXULQJUHPDSSLQJ
7KH&RPPLVVLRQ¶VUHSRUWLGHQWL¿HG
VLJQL¿FDQWHUURUVLQFXUUHQWROGJURZWK
and rainforest mapping, both in terms
RIIRUHVWH[WHQWDQGORFDWLRQ)RU
example, no old growth was found in
VL[RIWKHUHPDSSHGVLWHV)XUWKHU
four of the 13 remapped sites found
old growth largely outside of the
FXUUHQWPDSSHGDUHDV,QRQHVLWH
¿HOGZRUNLGHQWL¿HGKLJKTXDOLW\KDELWDW
in areas remapped as no longer
KDYLQJROGJURZWK2YHUDOOWKHH[WHQW
of old growth reduced by 78 percent
and rainforest by 35 percent when
DJJUHJDWHGDFURVVWKHSLORWVLWHV

Importantly, the pilot showed that
NSW can continue to meet its
commitment under the North East
Regional Forest Agreement by
remapping only those old growth
forest ecosystems that are above the
-$1,6UHVHUYDWLRQWDUJHWV

 koala habitat conservation

The Forestry Corporation of NSW’s
DQDO\VLVHVWLPDWHGWKHUHDUHVXI¿FLHQW
volumes of high-quality commercial
timber within areas that may be
remapped to offset the estimated short
falls arising from the recommended
,)2$VHWWLQJVUHSRUWHGLQ

Under the Strategy, the Commission
has been tasked to deliver an
independent research report to
better understand how koalas are
responding to regeneration harvesting
RQWKHQRUWKFRDVWRI16:

 conservation through community
action
 safety and health of koala
populations
 EXLOGLQJNQRZOHGJHDQGHGXFDWLRQ

The Commission concluded that
Government could meet its twin
commitments by implementing a riskbased two-way remapping process,
with built-in environmental safeguards,
WRPHHWYHUL¿HGZRRGVXSSO\
VKRUWIDOOV

 Provide support and advice
on forestry issues, as
UHTXHVWHG

In May 2018, the NSW Government
accepted the Commission’s proposed
SURFHVVWRUHPDSROGJURZWKIRUHVWV

 Develop framework to
UHDVVHVVROGJURZWKIRUHVWV

Next steps

 Design and implement
independent research on
NRDODV

In order to improve its understanding
of the NSW forest estate, the
Government requested the
Commission to oversee additional old
JURZWKUHPDSSLQJRQVWDWHIRUHVWV
7KLVLQFOXGHVRYHUVHHLQJWKH2I¿FHRI
Environment and Heritage developing
an additional environmental habitat
YDOXHVDVVHVVPHQWIUDPHZRUN2QFH
¿QDOLVHGWKHIUDPHZRUNZLOOSURYLGH
WKHVFLHQWL¿FEDVLVIRUDQ\IXWXUH
PDSSLQJRIROGJURZWKVLWHV

Government requests
independent research
on koalas
The new NSW Koala Strategy aims
to stabilise and increase koala
SRSXODWLRQVDFURVVWKH6WDWH
'XULQJWKH¿UVWWKUHH\HDUVRIWKH
Strategy, the aim is to stabilise koala
numbers by delivering actions under
four pillars:
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Water
Providing investor and
community con¿dence
in natural resource
management

Review of Water Sharing
Plan for the NSW Border
Rivers Regulated River
Water Source 2009
The Commission recommended that
the Plan be replaced with a new
management plan, and made six
VSHFL¿FUHFRPPHQGDWLRQV

New South Wales water sharing
plans are valid for 10 years from
WKHLUFRPPHQFHPHQW$PHQGPHQWV
to these plans are made throughout
their life to ensure they comply with
changing legislation and to facilitate
WKHLULPSOHPHQWDWLRQ+RZHYHUQHDU
the end of the 10 year term, a formal
UHYLHZLGHQWL¿HVWKHQHFHVVDU\
changes to deliver better outcomes
for all water users, including the
HQYLURQPHQW
Under the Water Management
Act 2000, the Minister may, after
considering a recommendation by the
Commission, extend a water sharing
plan for another 10 years or replace
WKHSODQ
In 2017-18, the Commission provided
advice on water sharing plans for the:
 NSW Border Rivers Regulated
River Water Source 2009
 NSW Great Artesian Basin
Groundwater Sources 2008
 Bellinger River Area Unregulated
DQG$OOXYLDO:DWHU6RXUFHV
The Commission’s review focused on
how plan provisions have contributed
to state priorities for Local Land
6HUYLFHV7KLVLQFOXGHVDVVHVVPHQW
against the goals from the Local
Land Services State Strategic Plan
and the achievement of triple bottom
OLQHRXWFRPHV7KH&RPPLVVLRQ
also considered the objectives of the
UHVSHFWLYHZDWHUVKDULQJSODQV

10

The Commission found that
stakeholders recognise the Plan
for its role in providing certainty
RIZDWHUULJKWVIRUXVHUV7KHUHLV
some evidence that environmental
objectives of the Plan are being
DFKLHYHG
7KH&RPPLVVLRQLGHQWL¿HG
opportunities for improvement,
including:
 adapting the Plan rules to improve
environmental and cultural
outcomes
 exploring opportunities to
HQFRXUDJHHI¿FLHQWXVHRIZDWHU
and facilitate trade
 improving monitoring and
evaluation of environmental
RXWFRPHV
The Commission also suggested
improved cross-jurisdictional
arrangements to manage cross-border
ÀRZV

Review of Water Sharing
Plan for the NSW
Great Artesian Basin
Groundwater Sources
2008
The Commission recommended that
the Plan be replaced with a new
management plan, and made nine
VSHFL¿FUHFRPPHQGDWLRQV
Overall, the Plan has supported
productive communities with nearly
all license holders receiving at or
near 100 percent of their entitled
allocation throughout the life of the
3ODQ+RZHYHUIXWXUHGHPDQGVDUH
likely to impact access in the Eastern
Recharge Groundwater Source, where
demand is currently at or exceeding
the long-term average annual
H[WUDFWLRQOLPLW
Given the limited monitoring and
HYDOXDWLRQLWZDVGLI¿FXOWWRDVVHVV
the extent to which the Plan has
KHOSHGDFKLHYHPDQ\RILWVREMHFWLYHV
However, one of the key objectives
relates to restoring pressure in
the artesian systems through
LPSURYHPHQWLQZDWHUXVHHI¿FLHQF\
E\ZDWHUXVHUV6LJQL¿FDQWSURJUHVV
has been made in improving pressure
in the artesian systems through the
µ&DSDQG3LSHWKH%RUHV¶SURJUDP
While the Plan recognises the
importance of cultural values, it does
not provide clear direction about the
VSHFL¿FYDOXHVRUORFDWLRQVLWDLPVWR
SURWHFWRUKRZWKH\ZLOOEHSURWHFWHG
7KHUHDUHVLJQL¿FDQWFXOWXUDOKHULWDJH
values throughout the Great Artesian
Basin and engagement with the
Aboriginal community will be critical in
GHYHORSLQJDQHZSODQ
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Review of Water Sharing
Plan for the Bellinger
River Area Unregulated
and Alluvial Water
Sources 2008

The Commission found that not all
provisions are implemented in full
RUFRQVLVWHQWO\$ODFNRIPRQLWRULQJ
and evaluation information, and lack
of coordination among monitoring
SURJUDPVPDNHLWGLI¿FXOWWR
assess the effectiveness of Plan
LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ

The Commission recommended that
the Plan be replaced with a new
management plan, and made seven
VSHFL¿FUHFRPPHQGDWLRQV

7KHQHZSODQZRXOGEHQH¿WIURP
regular engagement with the
Aboriginal community to allow for
more targeted and meaningful
RXWFRPHVIRUWKHP

Overall, the Commission found that,
if implemented in full, many of the
current provisions of the Plan have the
potential to allow for sustainable water
management to support economic,
social, cultural and environmental
RXWFRPHV7KH3ODQSURYLGHVZDWHU
for a wide range of uses, including
local councils, water utilities, livestock
JUD]LQJDQGVRPHLUULJDWHGFURSV
A considerable portion of water is
FRQVHUYHGIRUHQYLURQPHQWDOÀRZV

Next step
 Conduct audits of water
VKDULQJSODQVDVUHTXHVWHG

Natural Resources Commission Annual Report 2017-18
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Audit and assurance
Delivering independent
assurance to investors
and the community

In 2017-18, the Commission:
 commenced audits of emergency
response capability, and those of
implementation of major reforms,
focusing on biodiversity reform
 evaluated the Catchment Action
16:SURJUDP
In August 2017, the Commission
provided its 2017-18 risk-based audit
plan for Local Land Services to the
0LQLVWHUIRU3ULPDU\,QGXVWULHV
In response, the Minister requested
the Commission to scope and conduct
the proposed audits of:
 emergency response capability
 implementation of major reforms,
IRFXVLQJRQWKHELRGLYHUVLW\UHIRUP
The Commission’s audits deliver
accountability of service delivery, drive
improved performance, and engender
FRPPXQLW\DQGLQYHVWRUFRQ¿GHQFHLQ
WKHDXGLWHGRUJDQLVDWLRQ¶VDFWLYLWLHV

Audit of emergency
response capability

Audit of implementation
of major reforms

The Commission commenced an audit
of emergency management capability
of the Department of Primary
Industries and Local Land Services for
biosecurity emergencies and natural
disasters that impact on agriculture
DQGDQLPDOZHOIDUH

The Commission commenced
an audit of Local Land Services’
implementation of the biodiversity
UHIRUPV

The Department is the combat
agency responsible for control and
coordination regarding the prevention
of, preparedness for, response to, and
recovery from, impacts and effects of
DQ\ELRVHFXULW\HPHUJHQF\LQ16:
The Department also is responsible
for coordination of agricultural support
IROORZLQJQDWXUDOGLVDVWHUV
Local Land Services is the primary
support agency to the Department
for emergency management and
has legislative responsibilities for the
provision of emergency management
VHUYLFHV
The audit will focus on both
organisations’ emergency
preparedness, response and recovery
FDSDELOLW\
The audit is being conducted in three
stages:
 Stage 1: Preparedness assessment of workforce
emergency response capability
and capacity
 Stage 2: Response - review of
critical on-ground operations for
emergency response
 Stage 3: Recovery - review of
recovery phase responsibilities
DQG¿QDQFLQJVWUXFWXUHV
The Commission has completed
Stage 1 of the audit, and has provided
SUHOLPLQDU\¿QGLQJVWRWKHDJHQFLHV
DQGWKH0LQLVWHU
7KH&RPPLVVLRQZLOOSURYLGHWKH¿QDO
report to the Minister towards the end
RI

12

The reforms are responsive to the
2014 report of the Independent
Biodiversity Legislation Review Panel,
which concluded that fundamental
change to the system is required to
conserve biodiversity and support
VXVWDLQDEOHGHYHORSPHQW
Local Land Services’ Sustainable
Land Management Group is
responsible for administering the new
rural land management framework,
including providing extension and
VXSSRUWWRODQGKROGHUV
The audit is being conducted in four
stages:
 Stage 1 - Assess the extent to
which the Sustainable Land
Management Group’s processes,
systems and procedures are in
place to ensure that accurate,
consistent and timely advice is
SURYLGHG
 Stage 2 - Test the implementation
of those processes, systems and
SURFHGXUHVLQSURYLGLQJDGYLFH
 Stage 3 - Assess the likelihood
that landholders will engage with
the Sustainable Land Management
Group and examine customer
VDWLVIDFWLRQ
 Stage 4 - Examine whether
advice is recorded and stored in a
FRQVLVWHQWPDQQHU
The Commission has completed
Stage 1 of the audit, and has provided
SUHOLPLQDU\¿QGLQJVWRWKHDJHQF\DQG
WKH0LQLVWHU
7KH&RPPLVVLRQZLOOSURYLGHWKH¿QDO
report to the Minister towards the end
RI
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Evaluation of Catchment
Action NSW program
Catchment Action NSW is the NSW
Government’s investment program
for natural resource management
and is critical for Local Land Services’
delivery of its natural resource
PDQDJHPHQWIXQFWLRQ
7KH&RPPLVVLRQSURYLGHGLWV¿QDO
evaluation report for Catchment
Action NSW to the Minister for
3ULPDU\,QGXVWULHVDQGWRWKH2I¿FH
of Environment and Heritage who
provided funding to Local Land
6HUYLFHV

7KH&RPPLVVLRQLGHQWL¿HGVHYHUDO
RSSRUWXQLWLHVWRLPSURYHWKHHI¿FLHQF\
and effectiveness of the program and
WKRVHRIRQJURXQGSURMHFWV7KHUHLV
VLJQL¿FDQWYDULDWLRQLQWKHTXDOLW\RI
project planning and implementation
across regions, and not all projects
KDGSURMHFWSODQV)XUWKHUWKHUHZDV
considerable inconsistency in the
reporting between regions, making it
GLI¿FXOWWRDJJUHJDWHGDWDDQGDVVHVV
SURJUHVVRIWKHSURJUDP

Next step
 Complete audits of
emergency response
capability, and implementation
RIWKHELRGLYHUVLW\UHIRUP
 Audit Local Land Services’
VWUDWHJLFSODQLPSOHPHQWDWLRQ

The Commission’s evaluation provides
high-level assurance around Local
Land Services’ delivery of this funding
over a four-year period from 2013
The Commission found that several
areas of the program worked
ZHOO/RFDO/DQG6HUYLFHVVWDIIRQ
the ground are experienced and
committed to their work, which is a
NH\IDFWRULQWKHVXFFHVVRISURMHFWV
The Aboriginal staff working on the
Aboriginal Cultural Heritage projects
were vital to the success of projects
due to their efforts in building strong
relationships with the local Aboriginal
FRPPXQLWLHV
Despite the progress made, a number
of areas need improvement, including
transparency and accountability for
expenditure of funds, program design
and strategy, communication, and
PRQLWRULQJHYDOXDWLRQDQGUHSRUWLQJ
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Other advice
Providing high quality,
evidence-based advice
for decision making

In 2017-18:
 the NSW Government
accepted the Commission’s
recommendations on the
Supplementary Pest Control
Program
 the Commission evaluated the
Environmental Trust’s Linking
Landscapes project
 the Commission reviewed regional
pest animal management plans,
prepared by Local Land Services
 the Commission facilitated
strategic planning workshops for
Local Land Services
 the Commission provided advice
RQFRDVWDOGHYHORSPHQWSURSRVDOV

Government accepts
Commission’s
recommendations on
the Supplementary Pest
Control Program
Through a Terms of Reference,
the NSW Government asked the
Commission to evaluate the threeyear Supplementary Pest Control
Program to assist the Government in
deciding whether, and how, to proceed
with the proposed Program beyond
WKHWULDOSHULRG
In 2017, the Commission provided its
¿QDOHYDOXDWLRQUHSRUWWR*RYHUQPHQW
and recommended that the Program
continue and be expanded beyond
WKHWULDOSHULRG7KH*RYHUQPHQW
accepted all of the Commission’s
recommendations and decided to
FRQWLQXHWKH3URJUDP
The Program aims to reduce the
impact of targeted pest animal species
on priority threatened native species
and ecological communities in national
parks and other conservation reserves
LQ16:
The National Parks and Wildlife
Service has trialled the Program in 12
SDUNVDQGUHVHUYHVDFURVV16:7KH
trial used voluntary ground shooters
to assist in controlling pest animals
as a supplementary technique to
complement other National Parks and
:LOGOLIH6HUYLFHSHVWFRQWUROSURJUDPV
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Evaluation of Linking
Landscapes project
From 2011 to 2015, the NSW
Environmental Trust funded the
Linking Landscapes project that was
GHOLYHUHGE\WKH2I¿FHRI(QYLURQPHQW
DQG+HULWDJH7KHSURMHFWDLPHGWR
increase the condition, functional
connectivity, and resilience of
landscapes and ecosystems in
the Sydney Basin Bioregion by
HVWDEOLVKLQJELREDQNLQJVLWHV
The Trust engaged the Commission
to evaluate the effectiveness and
HI¿FLHQF\RIWKH/LQNLQJ/DQGVFDSHV
project, and to identify and document
OHVVRQVIRUIXWXUHIXQGLQJRISURMHFWV
These lessons may also be of value
to other agencies that work with
landholders to establish conservation
agreements for managing land with
KLJKELRGLYHUVLW\YDOXHV
The Commission’s evaluation focused
on three lines of inquiry:
 the effectiveness of the project in
achieving its objectives
 the effectiveness and
appropriateness of the design
and processes used to deliver the
project
 the lessons in relation to
FRVWHIIHFWLYHQHVVDQGHI¿FLHQF\
The Commission has provided its
HYDOXDWLRQUHSRUWWRWKH7UXVW
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Review of regional pest
animal management
plans
The NSW Local Land Services
prepared 11 draft regional strategic
pest animal management plans and
requested the Commission to conduct
a high-level rapid review of these
SODQV
The Commission’s review focused on
whether the plans:
 are strategic and logically
structured
 use best available information to
develop objectives, activities and
targets
 communicate effectively and
HQFRXUDJHVKDUHGUHVSRQVLELOLW\
The Commission found that the draft
plans were generally quality strategic
plans that provide a foundation
IRUFRPPXQLW\FRQVXOWDWLRQ7KH
plans could be further improved by
LPSURYLQJVSHFL¿FLW\DQGPHDVXUDELOLW\
of objectives, and by encouraging
coordinated programs across regions
IRUFRPPRQIXQFWLRQVDQGRUSHVWV
The Commission’s recommendations
ZHUHLQFRUSRUDWHGLQWRWKH¿QDOLVDWLRQ
of plans and helped improve the
TXDOLW\RISODQV

Advice on coastal
development proposals

Strategic planning
workshops

The new State Environmental
Planning Policy (Coastal
Management) 2018 commenced in
$SULO7KLVQHZSROLF\UHSODFHG
a number of planning instruments,
including the State Environmental
Planning Policy No. 71 – Coastal
Protection 6(33 

7KH&RPPLVVLRQIDFLOLWDWHG¿YH
strategic planning workshops on
natural resource management and
agricultural productivity to help Local
Land Services examine the current
operating environment and develop a
FOHDUVWUDWHJ\

As SEPP 71 is repealed, the
Commission no longer has a statutory
role in reviewing development
SURSRVDOVZLWKLQWKHFRDVWDO]RQH
Under SEPP 71, the Minister for
Planning was required to consult with
the Commission before approving a
master plan for subdivision of land
within the coastal zone or waiving the
QHHGIRUDPDVWHUSODQ

Next steps
 Monitor implementation of
SHVWPDQDJHPHQW

In 2017-18, the Commission provided
DGYLFHRQ¿YHFRDVWDOGHYHORSPHQW
SURSRVDOV
Since 2003-04, the Commission
provided advice on 27 master plans
and 299 requests to waive the need
IRUDPDVWHUSODQ
The Commission’s advice helped
promote the aims of SEPP 71 and
encouraged greater connection
between natural resource
PDQDJHPHQWDQGSODQQLQJSURFHVVHV
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Our people and systems
Building the capacity of
our people and support
systems to deliver our
goals

The Commission aims to be a
role model for good governance
by adaptively managing its work,
continually encouraging innovation
and retaining the highest quality
SHRSOHZLWKVNLOOVLQNH\DUHDV

Decision-making
structure
The Commissioner is responsible for
making decisions related to governing
the Commission and providing advice
WRWKH16:*RYHUQPHQW
The Commissioner is appointed by
the Governor of NSW for a period of
XSWR¿YH\HDUVDQGLVDFFRXQWDEOH
to the Premier for exercising all
functions under the Natural Resources
Commission Act 2003
The Executive Director is responsible
for the day-to-day leadership of the
Commission programs, administration
DQG¿QDQFLDODIIDLUV
The Director Corporate Services
reports to the Executive Director and
OHDGVFRUSRUDWHJRYHUQDQFH¿QDQFLDO
management, audit, and reporting
DFWLYLWLHV

Acting Commissioner

Commissioners and
executive

Brian Gilligan
BA, DipEd, MA
(Until 8 December 2017)

Commissioner
Dr John Keniry AM
BSc (Hons), PhD, FAICD, FTSE,
FRACI
(Appointed 8 December 2017)
John joined the Commission in
December 2011 and completed
KLV¿UVWDSSRLQWPHQWLQ'HFHPEHU
+HZDVDZDUGHGDQ2UGHURI
Australia in 2005 and a Centenary
0HGDOLQ+HDOVRFKDLUVWKH
6\GQH\,QVWLWXWHRI0DULQH6FLHQFH
John is a Fellow of the Royal
Australian Chemical Institute, the
Academy of Technological Sciences
and Engineering, and the Australian
,QVWLWXWHRI&RPSDQ\'LUHFWRUV
He is the past Chairman of Ridley
Corporation Ltd, the Australian
Chamber of Commerce and Industry,
the Livestock Export Review, the
National Registration Authority for
Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals,
DQG8QLVHDUFK/WG-RKQDOVRRZQV
a wool and lamb enterprise in central
ZHVW16:

Brian was appointed Acting
&RPPLVVLRQHULQ'HFHPEHU+H
has 40 years’ experience in education
and environment protection in the
public sector, including serving as
the Director General of the NSW
National Parks and Wildlife Service,
after a period as Executive Director
Operations with the Environment
3URWHFWLRQ$XWKRULW\+HKDVOHG
inquiries and evaluations in various
jurisdictions advising governments
on contentious planning and policy
LVVXHV
Executive Director
Mr Bryce Wilde
BA(Hons), ExecMPA
Bryce has over 20 years’ experience
in the areas of natural resource
management, public policy, strategic
planning and organisational
GHYHORSPHQW+HKDVEHHQD'LUHFWRU
at the Natural Resources Commission
since 2005 where he has led major
reviews, including the review of weed
management in NSW, management
of cypress forests in the Brigalow and
Nandewar State Conservation Areas,
review of river red gum and woodland
forests in the Riverina bioregion, and
XSJUDGLQJRI&DWFKPHQW$FWLRQ3ODQV

Directors report to the Executive
Director and are responsible for
managing multiple programs and
SURMHFWV
The Commission also establishes
SURMHFWVSHFL¿FUHYLHZSDQHOVWRVHHN
DGGLWLRQDOH[SHUWLVHDVQHHGHG
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Corporate governance

Work health and safety

Disability Inclusion Action Plan

2018 NSW Public Sector Employee
Survey

The Commission is committed to
ensure a safe and healthy work
environment for all staff, contractors,
FOLHQWVDQGYLVLWRUV

 continuing numerous health and
wellbeing initiatives, including the
FRUSRUDWH¿WQHVVSURJUDPDQG
LQÀXHQ]DYDFFLQDWLRQV

The Commission’s Disability Inclusion
Plan was developed around four focus
areas that support the NSW Disability
,QFOXVLRQ3ODQ7KHVHLQFOXGH
developing positive community
attitudes and behaviours; establishing
accessible systems and processes;
creating liveable communities; and
supporting access to meaningful
HPSOR\PHQW

 DXGLWLQJ¿UVWDLGNLWV

Multicultural policies and services

All of the Commission staff
participated in the 2018 NSW Public
6HFWRU(PSOR\HH6XUYH\2IQRWH
 SHUFHQWZHUHVDWLV¿HGZLWKRXU
ÀH[LEOHZRUNLQJDUUDQJHPHQWV
 82 percent valued our commitment
to high performance
 83 percent valued our approach to
diversity and inclusion
 79 percent recognised we live our
values
 80 percent agree that action will
be taken to respond to the survey
UHVXOWV
Learning and development
The Commission continued to
focus on building high performance,
capability and excellence by providing
staff members with learning and
GHYHORSPHQWRSSRUWXQLWLHV7KHVH
included:
 attendance at relevant
conferences and seminars,
such as the 19th NSW Weeds
Conference, Armidale
 ¿HOGYLVLWVWROHDUQDERXWZKDWLV
happening on the ground
 professional development support
through customised coaching,
feedback training and study
assistance scheme
 0
 \HUV%ULJJVSUR¿OLQJWRGHWHUPLQH
individual styles and understand
each other’s communication
preferences
 training in combating bullying,
work health and safety, and fraud
and corruption prevention
 face-to-face induction program for
all incoming staff
 targeted project management tools
that provide interactive approach
to planning and guiding project
SURFHVVHV

This was achieved by:

 participating in the Work Health
DQG6DIHW\&RPPLWWHH
One work health and safety incident
ZDVUHSRUWHGGXULQJ
Policies
After consultation with staff members,
the 2014-2017 Enterprise Agreement
was tabled at the Industrial Relations
&RPPLVVLRQ
The Commission provided advice
and support to staff members in
relation to working conditions, policies,
SURFHVVHVDQGSHUIRUPDQFH7KLV
included strategies to assist with
the management of workplace and
SHUIRUPDQFHLVVXHV
The Commission continued to review
human resource policies, procedures,
DQGJXLGHOLQHV7KLVKHOSHGSURYLGH
current information that is easy to use
and understand, and is aligned to
the public sector provisions and best
SUDFWLFH
Complaints handling
The Commission is committed to
handling feedback and complaints
FRXUWHRXVO\HI¿FLHQWO\HTXLWDEO\DQG
respecting the privacy of the person
PDNLQJWKHFRPSODLQW

The Commission supports the
principles of multiculturalism which
recognise and value the different
linguistic, religious, racial and
ethnic backgrounds of residents of
NSW, and promote equal rights and
responsibilities for all residents of
16:7KH&RPPLVVLRQ¶V0XOWLFXOWXUDO
Policies and Services Plan facilitates
the implementation of these principles
E\WKH&RPPLVVLRQ
Workforce diversity
The Commission is committed
to building a positive and
diverse workplace that is free of
GLVFULPLQDWLRQ
The Commission believes that the
PDNHXSRILWVZRUNSODFHVKRXOGUHÀHFW
the diversity of the communities in
ZKLFKZHOLYHDQGZRUN
The Commission demonstrates its
commitment to workforce diversity by:
 utilising new technologies and
communications to enable staff
PRUHÀH[LEOHZD\VRIZRUNLQJ
 VXSSRUWLQJÀH[LEOHZRUNSUDFWLFHV
including requests to work partWLPHRURQDMREVKDUHEDVLV

The Commission did not receive any
FRPSODLQWVLQWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRG
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Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
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Financial statements

Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency
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Statement on behalf of the Commission Staff Agency
Financial statements
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Natural Resources Commission and Controlled Entity

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Natural Resources Commission

To Members of the New South Wales Parliament

Opinion
I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Natural Resources Commission (the
Commission), which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended
30 June 2018, the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2018, the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory information
In my opinion, the financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Commission as at 30 June 2018, and of
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards
are in accordance with section 41B of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 (PF&A Act) and
the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2015
My opinion VKRXOGEHUHDGLQFRQMXQFWLRQZLWKWKHUHVWRIWKLVUHSRUW

Basis for Opinion
,FRQGXFWHGP\DXGLWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK$XVWUDOLDQ$XGLWLQJ6WDQGDUGV0\UHVSRQVLELOLWLHVXQGHUWKH
standards are described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
VHFWLRQRIP\UHSRUW
I am independent of the Commission in accordance with the requirements of the:
Australian Auditing Standards
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants’ ($3(6 
I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110
Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:
providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General
mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of public sector agencies
precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-DXGLWVHUYLFHV
I believe the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
DXGLWRSLQLRQ
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Other Information
Other information comprises the information included in the Commission’s annual report for the year
ended 30 June 2018, other than the financial statements and my Independent Auditor’s Report
WKHUHRQ7KH1DWXUDO5HVRXUFHV&RPPLVVLRQHULVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHRWKHULQIRUPDWLRQ$WWKHGDWHRI
this Independent Auditor’s Report, the other information I have received comprise the Statement by
WKH1DWXUDO5HVRXUFHV&RPPLVVLRQHUSXUVXDQWWRVHFWLRQ& % RIWKH3) $$FW
0\RSLQLRQRQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVGRHVQRWFRYHUWKHRWKHULQIRUPDWLRQ$FFRUGLQJO\,GRQRW
express any form of assurance conclusion on the other informatLRQ
In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
PLVVWDWHG
If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude there is a material misstatement of the other
LQIRUPDWLRQ,PXVWUHSRUWWKDWIDFW
,KDYHQRWKLQJWRUHSRUWLQWKLVUHJDUG

The Commissioner’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements
The Commissioner is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the PF&A Act, and for such internal control
as the Commissioner determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements that DUHIUHHIURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURU
In preparing the financial statements, the Commissioner is responsible for assessing the
Commission’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting except where the Commission will be
dissolved by an Act of Parliament or otherZLVHFHDVHRSHUDWLRQV

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
My objectives are to:
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
issue an Independent Auditor’s Report including my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing 6WDQGDUGVZLOODOZD\VGHWHFWPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWV
0LVVWDWHPHQWVFDQDULVHIURPIUDXGRUHUURU0LVVWDWHPHQWVDUHFRQVLGHUHGPDWHULDOLILQGLYLGXDOO\RU
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take
baseGRQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board website at: wwwDXDVEJRYDXDXGLWRUVBUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVDUSGIThe
description forms part of my auditor’s report.
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My opinion does not provide assurance:
that the Commission carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically
about the assumptions used in formulating the budget figures disclosed in the financial
statements
about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial
statements on any website where they may be presented
about any other information which may haYHEHHQK\SHUOLQNHGWRIURPWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

Caroline Karakatsanis
Director, Financial Audit Services

21 September 2018
SYDNEY
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17 September 2018

Statement by the Natural Resources Commissioner
as head of the Natural Resources Commission
For both the Natural Resources Commission and Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency
financial statements
Pursuant to section 41C(1B) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, I state to the best of my
knowledge and belief that:
a)
the accompanying financial statements in respect of the year ended 30 June 2018 have been
prepared in accordance with applicable Australian Accounting Standards, the provisions of the
Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, applicable clauses of the Public Finance and Audit Regulation
2015 and the Financial Reporting Directions published in the Financial Reporting Code for NSW
General Government Sector Entities, and
b)
the statements exhibit a true and fair view of the financial position of the Parliamentary
Counsel’s Office as at 30 June 2018, and transactions for the year then ended, and
c)
there are no circumstances that would render any particulars included in the financial
statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

Yours sincerely

Dr John Keniry AM
Commissioner

Level 6, 52 Martin Place, Sydney NSW 2000 Australia. All correspondence to: GPO Box 5341, Sydney NSW 2001
Telephone 02 9228 4844 Facsimile 02 9228 4970 Website: www.nrc.nsw.gov.au ABN 36 106 334 821
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Natural Resources Commission
& its Controlled Entity
Financial statements
for the period ended 30 June 2018
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Natural Resources Commission
Statements of comprehensive income
for the period ended 30 June 2018

Notes

Actual
2018
$'000

Consolidated
Budget
2018
$'000

Actual
2017
$'000

Actual
2018
$'000

Commission
Budget
2018
$'000

Actual
2017
$'000

2(a)

2,789

3,332

2,717

-

-

-

2(b)

2,232

1,752

2,010

2,232

1,752

2,010

2(c)
2(d)
2(e)

215
3

227
3

208
2

215
2,693
3

227
3,280
3

208
2,751
2

5,239

5,314

4,937

5,143

5,262

4,971

3(a)

4,934

5,134

4,148

4,934

5,134

4,148

3(b)
3(c)

96
205

52
-

(34)
172

205

-

172

5,235

5,186

4,286

5,139

5,134

4,320

Expenses excluding
losses
Operating Expenses
Employee Related
Expenses
Other Operating
Expenses
Depreciation and
amortisation
Personnel Services
Finance Cost
Total expenses
excluding losses
Revenue
Grants and Contributions
Acceptance by the Crown
Entity of employee
benefits and other
liabilities
Other Revenue
Total Revenue
Gain /(loss) on disposal

4

(2)

-

(4)

(2)

-

(4)

Other gains/(losses)

5

3

-

(7)

3

-

(7)

Net Result
Other comprehensive
income
Other comprehensive income

(3)

(128)

(662)

(3)

(128)

(662)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(3)

(128)

(662)

(3)

(128)

(662)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

The accompanying notes form part of WKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

Natural Resource Commission
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Natural Resources Commission
Statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2018

Notes

Actual

Consolidated
Budget

Actual

Actual

Commission
Budget

Actual

2018
$'000

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

2018
$'000

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash
equivalents
Receivables
Total current assets
Plant and Equipment
Plant and Equipment
Leasehold Obligations
Total Plant and
Equipment
Total non-current assets
Total assets

7
8

1,008
223
1,231

483
38
521

877
29
906

1,000
223
1,223

483
38
521

858
29
887

9
9

378
784

354
793

404
895

378
784

354
793

404
895

1,162
1,162
2,393

1,147
1,147
1,668

1,299
1,299
2,205

1,162
1,162
2,385

1,147
1,147
1,668

1,299
1,299
2,186

10
11

633
255
888

157
304
461

459
239
698

633
247
880

157
304
461

440
239
679

11

5
125

229

4
125

5
125

229

4
125

130
1,018
1,375

229
690
978

129
827
1,378

130
1,010
1,375

229
690
978

129
808
1,378

1,375
1,375

978
978

1,378
1,378

1,375
1,375

978
978

1,378
1,378

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables
Provisions
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Employee benefits and
related on costs
Other provisions
Total non-current
liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets
EQUITY
Accumulated funds
Total Equity

7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVIRUPSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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Natural Resources Commission
Statements of changes in equity
for the period ended 30 June 2018

Consolidated and Commission
Balance at 1 July 2017
Net Result for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Accumulated
Funds
$'000
1,378

Total
$'000
1,378

(3)
(3)

(3)
(3)

Balance at 30 June 2018

1,375

1,375

Balance at 1 July 2016

2,040

2,040

Net Result for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Increase / (decrease) in net assets from equity transfers

(662)
(662)
-

(662)
(662)
-

Balance at 30 June 2017

1,378

1,378

7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVIRUPSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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Natural Resources Commission
Statement of cash flows
for the period ended 30 June 2018

Actual
2018
$'000

Consolidated
Budget
2018
$'000

Actual
2017
$'000

Actual
2018
$'000

Commission
Budget
2018
$'000

Actual
2017
$'000

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee related
Other
Total Payments

(2,684)
(2,259)
(4,943)

(3,274)
(1,656)
(4,930)

(2,588)
(2,225)
(4,813)

(2,684)
(2,248)
(4,932)

(3,274)
(1,656)
(4,930)

(2,805)
(2,004)
(4,809)

4,934
220
5,154

5,134
1
5,135

4,148
357
4,505

4,934
220
5,154

5,134
1
5,135

4,148
357
4,505

NET CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

211

205

(308)

222

205

(304)

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of land and buildings,
plant and equipment

(80)

(80)

-

(80)

(80)

-

NET CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(80)

(80)

-

(80)

(80)

-

131

125

(308)

142

125

(304)

877

358

1,185

858

358

1,162

1,008

483

877

1,000

483

858

Receipts
Grants and Contributions
Other
Total Receipts

NET INCREASE (DECREASE)
IN CASH
Opening cash and cash
equivalents
CLOSING CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVIRUPSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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Natural Resources Commission
Notes to the financial statements
for the ended 30 June 2018

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a)

Reporting entity
The Natural Resources Commission (the Commission), was established as an independent body with broad
investigating and reporting functions for the purpose of establishing a sound scientific basis for the properly
informed management of natural resources in the social, economic and environmental interests of the State, and
HQDEOLQJWKHDGRSWLRQRI6WDWHZLGHVWDQGDUGVDQGWDUJHWVIRUQDWXUDOUHVRXUFHPDQDJHPHQWLVVXHV
The Commission, as a reporting entity, comprises all the entities under its control, namely the Natural Resources
&RPPLVVLRQ6WDII$JHQF\7KH1DWXUDO5HVRXUFHV&RPPLVVLRQ6WDII$JHQF\ 6WDII$JHQF\ LVDSXEOLFVHUYLFH
agency established under the Administrative Arrangements Order 2014 and is pursuant to Part 2 of Schedule 1 of
the Government Sector Employment Act 2013 (formerly the NRC Division established under the former
Public-6HFWRU(PSOR\PHQWDQG0DQDJHPHQW$FW $OOHPSOR\HHSURYLVLRQVDUHQRZKHOGZLWKLQWKH6WDII
Agency, and are shown in the consolidated section of these statHPHQWV
In the process of preparing the consolidated financial statements for the economic entity, consisting of the
controlling and controlled entities, all inter entity transactions and balances have been eliminated, and like
transactions and other evHQWVDUHDFFRXQWHGIRUXVLQJXQLIRUPDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV
7KH&RPPLVVLRQLVD16:JRYHUQPHQWVWDWXWRU\DXWKRULW\7KH&RPPLVVLRQLVDQRWIRUSURILWHQWLW\ DVSURILWLV
QRWLWVSULQFLSDOREMHFWLYH DQGLWKDVQRFDVKJHQHUDWLQJXQLWV7KHUHSRUWLQJHQWity is consolidated as part of the
NSW Total State Sector Accounts
These consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 have been authorised for issue by the
Commissioner on 14th 6HSWHPEHU

(b)

Basis of preparation
The Commission's financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in
accordance with:
x
x
x

applicable Australian Accounting Standards (which include Australian Accounting Interpretations)
the requirements of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 and Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2015;
and
the Financial Reporting Directions published in the Code for Budget Dependent General Government Sector
$JHQFLHVRULVVXHGE\WKH7UHDVXUHU

Leasehold obligations anGSODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWDWIDLUYDOXHWKURXJKSURILWDQGORVVDUHPHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXH
2WKHUILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLWHPVDUHSUHSDUHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHKLVWRULFDOFRVWFRQYHQWLRQ
Judgements, key assumptions and estimations management has made are disclosed in the relevant notes to the
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
The Commission’s financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the
continuity of normal operating activity and the realisation of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the normal
FRXUVHRIRSHUDWLRQV7KH&RPPLVVLRQKHOGFDVKRQKDQGDQGDWEDQNDVDW-XQHRI
 7KH&RPPLVVLRQUHFHLYHVDJUDQWIURPWKH'HSDUWPHQWRI3UHPLHUDQG&DELQHWWKDWLVVXIILFLHQW
to fund its oQJRLQJRSHUDWLRQV
$OODPRXQWVDUHURXQGHGWRWKHQHDUHVWRQHWKRXVDQGGROODUVDQGDUHH[SUHVVHGLQ$XVWUDOLDQFXUUHQF\
(c)

Statement of compliance
The financial statements and notes comply with Australian Accounting Standards, which include Australian
$FFRXQWLQJ,QWHUSUHWDWLRQV

(d)

Insurance
The Commission's insurance activities are conducted through the NSW Treasury Managed Fund Scheme of
self-LQVXUDQFHIRU*RYHUQPHQWDJHQFLHV7KHH[SHQVH SUHPLXP LVGHWHUPLQHGE\WKH)XQG0DQDJHUEDVed on
SDVWFODLPH[SHULHQFH
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1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
(e)

Accounting for the Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except that the:
x

(f)

amount of GST incurred by the Commission as a purchaser that is not recoverable from the Australian
Taxation Office is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expense
and cash flows are LQFOXGHGLQWKHFDVKIORZVWDWHPHQWRQDJURVVEDVLV+RZHYHUWKH*67FRPSRQHQWVRI
cash flows arising from investing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation
2IILFHDUHFODVVLILHGDVRSHUDWLQJFDVKIORZV

Income recognition
,QFRPHLVPHDVXUHGDWWKHIDLUYDOXHRIWKHFRQVLGHUDWLRQRUFRQWULEXWLRQUHFHLYHGRUUHFHLYDEOH$GGLWLRQDO
FRPPHQWVUHJDUGLQJWKHDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVIRUWKHUHFRJQLWLRQRILQFRPHDUHGLVFXVVHGEHORZ
(i)

Parliamentary appropriations and contributions
Except as specified below, parliamentary appropriations and contributions from other bodies (including
grants and donations) are generally recognised as income when the Commission obtains control over the
assets comprising the DSSURSULDWLRQVFRQWULEXWLRQV&RQWURORYHUDSSURSULDWLRQVDQGFRQWULEXWLRQVLV
QRUPDOO\REWDLQHGXSRQWKHUHFHLSWRIFDVK

(ii)

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised as revenue when the Commission transfers the significant
ULVNVDQGUHZDUGVRIRZQHUVKLSRIWKHDVVHWV

(iii)

Rendering of services
Revenue is recognised when the service is provided or by reference to the stage of completion and costs
incurred are recovered

(iv) Grants
Income from grants (other than the contribution by owners) is recognised when the entity obtains control over
WKHFRQWULEXWLRQ7KHHQWLW\LVGHHPHGWRKDYHDVVXPHGFRQWUROZKHQWKHJUDQWLVUHFHLYHGRUUHFHLYDEOH
(g)

Property, Plant and Equipment
(i)

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value less
DFFXPXODWHGGHSUHFLDWLRQDQGLPSDLUPHQW&RVWLVWKHDPRXQWRIFDVKRUFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVSDLGRUWKHIDLU
value of the other consideration given to acquire the asset at the time of its acquisition or construction or,
where applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially recognised in accordance with the
UHTXLUHPHQWVRIRWKHU$XVWUDOLDQ$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUG
Assets acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, are initially recognised as assets and revenues at
WKHLUIDLUYDOXHDWWKHGDWHRIDFTXLVLWLRQ
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market
participaQWVDWPHDVXUHPHQWGDWH
Where payment for an asset is deferred beyond normal credit terms, its cost is the cash price equivalent,
LHGHIHUUHGSD\PHQWDPRXQWLVHIIHFWLYHO\GLVFRXQWHGRYHUWKHSHULRGRIFUHGLW

(ii)

Capitalisation thresholds
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets costing $5,000 and above individually (or forming part
RIDQHWZRUNFRVWLQJPRUHWKDQ DUHFDSLWDOLVHG
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1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
(g)

Property, Plant and Equipment (cont'd)
(iii)

Restoration costs
The present value of the expected cost for the restoration or cost of dismantling of an asset after its use is
LQFOXGHGLQWKHFRVWRIWKHUHVSHFWLYHDVVHWLIWKHUHFRJQLWLRQFULWHULDIRUDSURYLVLRQDUHPHW

(iv)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation is provided for on a straight line basis for all depreciable assets so as to write off the
GHSUHFLDEOHDPRXQWRIHDFKDVVHWDVLWLVFRQVXPHGRYHULWVXVHIXOOLIHWRWKH&RPPLVVLRQ
All PDWHULDOLGHQWLILDEOHFRPSRQHQWVRIDVVHWVDUHGHSUHFLDWHGVHSDUDWHO\RYHUWKHLUXVHIXOOLYHV
% Rate
2018

% Rate
2017

range from 10 to 33
range from 25 to 33
range from 10 to 20
33
Over the period of the lease

range from 10 to 33
33
range from 10 to 20
33
Over the period of the lease

Depreciation Rates

Plant & Equipment
Office furniture and fittings
Computer equipment and software
General plant and equipment
Intangible
Leasehold improvements
(v)

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Physical non-current assets are valued in accordance with the 'Valuation of Physical Non-Current Assets at
)DLU9DOXH 3ROLF\DQG*XLGHOLQHV3DSHU 733 7KLVSROLF\DGRSWVIDLUYDOXHLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK$$6%
)DLU9DOXH0HDVXUHPHQWDQG$$6%3URSHUW\3ODQWDQG(TXLSPHQW
Non specialised assets with short useful lives are measured at depreciated historical cost as an
DSSUR[LPDWLRQRIIDLUYDOXH7KHHQWLW\KDVDVVHVVHGWKDWDQ\GLIIHUHQFHEHWZHHQIDLUYDOXHDQGGHSUHFLDWHG
KLVWRULFDOFRVWLVXQOLNHO\WREHPDWHULDO

(vi)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
As a not for profit entity with no cash generating units, impairment under AASB 136 Impairment of Assets is
XQOLNHO\WRDULVH$VSODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWLVFDUULHGDWIDLUYDOXHLPSDLUPHQWFDQRQO\DULVHLQWKHUDUH
circumstaQFHVZKHUHWKHFRVWVRIGLVSRVDODUHPDWHULDO6SHFLILFDOO\LPSDLUPHQWLVXQOLNHO\IRUQRWIRUSURILW
entities given that AASB 136 modifies the recoverable amount test for non-cash generating assets of not for
profit entities to the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and depreciated replacement cost, where
GHSUHFLDWHGUHSODFHPHQWFRVWLVDOVRIDLUYDOXH

(h) Leases
$QRSHUDWLQJOHDVHLVDOHDVHRWKHUWKDQDILQDQFHOHDVH2SHUDWLQJOHDVHSD\PHQWVDUHUHFRJQLVHGDVDQ
operating expense in VWDWHPHQWRIFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPHRQVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVRYHUWKHWHUP
(i)

Intangible assets
The Commission recognises intangible assets only if it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
agency and the cost of the asset can be PHDVXUHGUHOLDEO\,QWDQJLEOHDVVHWVDUHPHDVXUHGLQLWLDOO\DWFRVW:KHUH
DQDVVHWLVDFTXLUHGDWQRRUQRPLQDOFRVWWKHFRVWLVLWVIDLUYDOXHDVDWWKHGDWHRIDFTXLVLWLRQ
Intangible assets are subsequently measured at fair value only if there is aQDFWLYHPDUNHW$VWKHUHLVQRDFWLYH
market for the agency’s intangible assets, the assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation.
The Commission’s intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over a period of three yeDUV
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1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
(i)

Intangible assets (cont'd)
,QWDQJLEOHDVVHWVDUHWHVWHGIRULPSDLUPHQWZKHUHDQLQGLFDWRURILPSDLUPHQWH[LVWV,IWKHUHFRYHUDEOHDPRXQWLV
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount and the reduction is
UHFRJQLVHGDVDQLPSDLUPHQWORVV

(j)

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
HTXLW\LQVWUXPHQWRIDQRWKHUHQWLW\
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDUHLQLWLDOO\PHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXH7UDQVDFWLRQFRVWVWKDWDUHGLUHFWO\
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
DVVHWVRUILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDVDSSURSULDWHRQLQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQ7UDQVDFWLRQ costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
LQQHWUHVXOW
The Commission determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities after initial recognition and,
when allowed and appropriate, re-HYDOXDWHVWKLVDWHDFKILQDQFLDO\HDUHQG
(i)

Financial assets
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives
GHVLJQDWHGDVKHGJLQJLQVWUXPHQWVLQDQHIIHFWLYHKHGJHDVDSSURSULDWH7KHFODVVLILFDWLRQGHSHQGVRQWKH
nature and purpose of the financial assetVDQGLVGHWHUPLQHGDWWKHWLPHRILQLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQ
x

Loans and receivables
Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market are classified as loans and UHFHLYDEOHV/RDQVDQGUHFHLYDEOHVDUHPHDVXUHG
DWDPRUWLVHGFRVWXVLQJWKHHIIHFWLYHLQWHUHVWPHWKRGOHVVDQ\LPSDLUPHQW&KDQJHVDUHUHFRJQLVHGLQ
WKHQHWUHVXOWIRUWKH\HDUZKHQLPSDLUHGGHUHFRJQLVHGRUWKRXJKWKHDPRUWLVDWLRQSURFHVV
Short-term receivables with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount unless
WKHHIIHFWRIGLVFRXQWLQJLVPDWHULDO

(ii)

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either 'at fair value through profit or loss' RU DWDPRUWLVHGFRVW 
x

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including borrowings and trade payables)
)LQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDWDPRUWLVHGFRVWDUHLQLWLDOO\PHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXHQHWRIWUDQVDFWLRQFRVWV7KHVH
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense
UHFRJQLVHGRQDQHIIHFWLYH\LHOGEDVLV
3D\DEOHVUHSUHVHQWOLDELOLWLHVIRUJRRGVDQGVHUYLFHVSURYLGHGWRWKHDJHQF\DQGRWKHUDPRXQWV
Short-term payables with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount where the
HIIHFWRIGLVFRXQWLQJLVLPPDWHULDO
)LQDQFHOHDVHOLDELOLWLHVDUHGHWHUPLQHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK$$6%

(iii)

De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets
expire; or if the entity transfers the financial asset:
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for the ended 30 June 2018

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
(j)

Financial Instruments (cont'd)
x

where substantially all the risks and rewards have been transferred; or

x

where the agency has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards, if the agency has not
UHWDLQHGFRQWURO

Where the agency has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards or transferred
control, the asset continues to be recognised to the extent of the agency's continuing involvement in the
DVVHW,QWKDWFDVHWKHDJHQF\DOVRUHFRJQLVHVDQDVVRFLDWHGOLDELOLW\7KHWUDQVIHUred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the agency has
UHWDLQHG
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the entity
FRXOGEHUHTXLUHGWRUHSD\
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or
H[SLUHV:KHQan existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the originaOOLDELOLW\DQGWKHUHFRJQLWLRQRIDQHZOLDELOLW\7KH
GLIIHUHQFHLQWKHUHVSHFWLYHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWVLVUHFRJQLVHGLQWKHQHWUHVXOW
(iv)

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statements of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities VLPXOWDQHRXVO\

(k) Employee benefits and other provisions
(a)

Salaries and wages, annual leave, sick leave and on-costs
Salaries and wages (including non-monetary benefits) and paid sick leave that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the service are recognised
DQGPHDVXUHGDWWKHXQGLVFRXQWHGDPRXQWVRIWKHEHQHILWV
Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual reporting
SHULRGLQZKLFKWKHHPSOR\HHVUHQGHUWKHUHODWHGVHUYLFH$VVXFKLWLVUHTXLUHGWREHPHDVXUHGDWSUHVHQW
value in accordance with AASB 119 Emplo\HH%HQHILWV DOWKRXJKVKRUWFXWPHWKRGVDUHSHUPLWWHG 
Actuarial advice obtained by Treasury has confirmed that the use of a nominal approach plus the annual
OHDYHRQDQQXDOOHDYHOLDELOLW\ XVLQJRIWKHQRPLQDOYDOXHRIDQQXDOOHDYH FDQEHXVHGWRDSSUR[LPDWH
the present value of the annual leave liabilLW\
The Commission has assessed the actuarial advice based on the Commission’s circumstances and has
GHWHUPLQHGWKDWWKHHIIHFWRIGLVFRXQWLQJLVLPPDWHULDOWRDQQXDOOHDYH
Unused non vesting sick leave does not give rise to a liability as it is not considered probable that sick leave
WDNHQLQWKHIXWXUHZLOOEHJUHDWHUWKDQWKHEHQHILWVDFFUXHGLQWKHIXWXUH

(b)

Long service leave and superannuation
The Commission’s liabilities for long service leave are asVXPHGE\WKH&URZQ(QWLW\7KH&ommission
accounts for the liability as having been extinguished; resulting in the amount assumed being shown as part
of the non-monetary revenue item described as 'Acceptance by the Crown Entity of employee benefits and
RWKHUOLDELOLWLHV 
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1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
(k) Employee benefits and other provisions (cont'd)
/RQJVHUYLFHOHDYHLVPHDVXUHGDWSUHVHQWYDOXHLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK$$6%(PSOR\HH%HQHILWV7KLVLVEDVHd on
the application of certain factors (specified in NSWTC18-13) to employees with five or more years of service, using
FXUUHQWUDWHVRISD\7KHVHIDFWRUVZHUHGHWHUPLQHGEDVHGRQDQDFWXDULDOUHYLHZWRDSSUR[LPDWHSUHVHQWYDOXH
The superannuation expense for the financial year is determined by using the formulae specified in the Treasurer’s
'LUHFWLRQV7KHH[SHQVHIRUFHUWDLQVXSHUDQQXDWLRQVFKHPHV LH%DVLF%HQHILWDQG)LUVW6WDWH6XSHU LVFDOFXODWHG
as a percentage of the employees’ salary.
(c)

Consequential on-costs
Consequential costs to employment are recognised as liabilities and expenses where the employee benefits to
ZKLFKWKH\UHODWHKDYHEHHQUHFRJQLVHG7KLVLQFOXGHVRXWVWDQGLQJDPRXQWVRISD\UROOWD[workers' compensation
LQVXUDQFHSUHPLXPVDQGIULQJHEHQHILWVWD[

(l)

Other Provisions
Provisions are recognised when: the Commission has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be
PDGHRIWKHDPRXQWRIWKHREOLJDWLRQ:KHQWKHHQWity expects some or all of provisions to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
YLUWXDOO\FHUWDLQ7KHH[SHQVHUHODWLQJWRDSURYLVLRQLVSUHVHQWHGQHt of any reimbursement in the Statement of
&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPH

(m) Fair value hierarchy
Fair value hierarchy disclosure under AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, is not required as the Commission's assets are
non-specialised assets with short useful lives and measured at depreciated historical cost as an approximation of fair
YDOXH
(n)

Equity and reserves
(i) Accumulated Funds
7KHFDWHJRU\DFFXPXODWHGIXQGVLQFOXGHVDOOFXUUHQWDQGSULRUSHULRGUHWDLQHGIXQGV

(o)

Budgeted amounts
The budgeted amounts are drawn from the original budgeted financial statements presented to Parliament in respect of
WKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRG6XEVHTXHQWDPHQGPHQWVWRWKHRULJLQDOEXGJHW HJDGMXVWPHQWIRUWUDQVIHURIIXQFWLRQVEHWZHHQ
entities as a result oI$GPLQLVWUDWLYH$UUDQJHPHQWV2UGHUV DUHQRWUHIOHFWHGLQWKHEXGJHWHGDPRXQWV0DMRUYDULDQFHV
between the original budgeted amounts and the actual amounts disclosed in the primary financial statements is explained
LQ1RWH

(p)

Comparative information
Except when an Australian Accounting Standard permits or requires otherwise, comparative information is disclosed in
UHVSHFWRIWKHSUHYLRXVSHULRGIRUDOODPRXQWVUHSRUWHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
(q)

Changes in accounting policy, including new or revised Australian Accounting Standards
(i) Effective for the first time in 2017-18
The accounting policies applied in 2017-18 are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the
following standards adopted for the first time in 2017-7KHLPSDFWRIWKHVH6WDQGDUGVLQWKHSHULRGRILQLWLDO
applicDWLRQLVQRWPDWHULDO
x
x
x
x

AASB 2016-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
8QUHDOLVHG/RVVHV
AASB 2016-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB

AASB 2016-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Recoverable Amount of
Non-Cash-Generating Specialised Assets of Not-for-3URILW(QWLWLHV
AASB 2017-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Further Annual Improvements 2014-2016
&\FOH

(ii) Issued but not yet effective
NSW public sector entities are not permitted to early adopt new Australian Accounting Standards, unless
Treasury determines otherwise
The following new Australian Accounting Standards have not been applied and are not yet effective (TC18- 
x AASB 9 Financial Instruments
x AASB 15, AASB 2014-5, AASB 2015-8 and 2016-3 regarding Revenue from Contracts with Customers
x AASB 16 Leases
x AASB 17 Insurance Contracts
x AASB 1058 Income of Not for profit Entities
x AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors
x AASB 2016-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions
x AASB 2016-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Applying AASB 9 with AASB 4 Insurance
Contracts
x AASB 2016-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Deferral of AASB 15 for Not-for-Profit
(QWLWLHV
x AASB 2016-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Australian Implementation Guidance for
Not-for-Profit Entities
The Commission anticipates that adoption of these standards in the period of initial application will have no
material impact on the financial statements H[FHSWWKH$$6%
The agency has been working with Treasury and the Principal department in order to prepare itself for the
implementation of AASB 16 in the financial year 2019-$QLPSDFWVWDWHPHQWKDVEHHQLVVXHGE\
Property NSW outlining the impact of applying the standard in 2019-7KHUHZLOOEHQLOQHWLPSDFWRQWKH
statement of financial position LQWKHILUVW\HDURIDSSOLFDWLRQ
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2 Expenses excluding losses
Consolidated
2018
2017
$'000
$'000

2018
$'000

Commission
2017
$'000

2,523
125
(34)
8
106
(11)
2,717

-

-

Consolidated
2018
2017
$'000
$'000

2018
$'000

Commission
2017
$'000

(a) Employee related expenses
Salaries and wages (including annual leave)
Superannuation: defined contribution plans
Long service leave
Worker's compensation insurance
Payroll tax and fringe benefit tax
On-Costs - annual leave and long service leave

2,453
115
96
9
102
14
2,789

(b) Other operating expenses include the following:
Auditor's remuneration - audit or review of the financial
statements
Consultancy costs
Contractors
Insurance
Postage and telephone
Advertising, Printing and Publication
Operating lease rental expense - minimum lease
payments
Training (staff development)
Travel
Corporate Services
Administration Expenses
ICT Expenses

26
973
129
5
17
7

25
932
5
15
12

26
973
129
5
17
7

25
932
5
15
12

452
73
111
241
174
24
2,232

438
107
68
266
122
20
2,010

452
73
111
241
174
24
2,232

438
107
68
266
122
20
2,010

Consolidated
2018
2017
$'000
$'000

2018
$'000

Commission
2017
$'000

104
111
215

97
111
208

(c) Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation
Plant and Equipment
Leasehold Improvements
Total depreciation and amortisation

Natural Resource Commission
Natural Resources Commission Annual Report 2017-18

104
111
215

97
111
208

Page 12 of 22
35

Natural Resources Commission
Notes to the financial statements
for the ended 30 June 2018

Consolidated
2018
2017
$'000
$'000

2018
$'000

Commission
2017
$'000

-

2,693
2,693

2,751
2,751

Consolidated
2018
2017
$'000
$'000

2018
$'000

Commission
2017
$'000

2
2

3
3

2
2

Consolidated
2018
2017
$'000
$'000

2018
$'000

Commission
2017
$'000

4,934
4,934

4,148
4,148

4,934
4,934

4,148
4,148

96
96

(34)
(34)

-

-

205
205

172
172

205
205

172
172

Consolidated
2018
2017
$'000
$'000

2018
$'000

Commission
2017
$'000

(4)
(4)

(2)
(2)

(4)
(4)

Consolidated
2018
2017
$'000
$'000
3
(7)
3
(7)

2018
$'000
3
3

Commission
2017
$'000
(7)
(7)

(d) Personnel Services
Paid to Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency

-

(e) Finance Cost
Unwinding of discount rate
Total unwinding of discount rate

3
3

3 REVENUE

(a) Grants and contributions
Transfer payment from Department of Premier and
Cabinet

(b) Acceptance by Crown Entity of employee benefits and
other liabilities
Long service leave

(c) Other revenue
Consultancies recoveries
Total Revenue

4 GAIN / (LOSS) ON DISPOSAL

Gain / (loss) on disposal of plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal
Written down value of assets disposed
Net gain / (loss) on disposal of plant and equipment

(2)
(2)

5 OTHER GAINS / (LOSSES)

Other gains/(losses)
Other gains / (losses) total
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6 Budget program – Independent advice and accountability
To provide independent advice to the NSW Government on natural resource management (NRM) issues which
enables NRM decisions to be based on sound science and best practice management and ensures decisions are
PDGHLQWKHHQYLURQPHQWDOVRFLDODQGHFRQRPLFLQWHUHVWVRIWKH6WDWH

7 Current Assets- Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand

Consolidated
2018
2017
$'000
$'000

2018
$'000

Commission
2017
$'000

1,008
1,008

1,000
1,000

858
858

877
877

For the purposes of the Statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash at EDQNDQGFDVKRQKDQG
Cash and cash equivalent assets recognised in the statement of financial position are reconciled at the end of the
financial year to the statement of cash flows as follows:
Consolidated
Commission
30 June
30 June
30 June
30 June
2018
2017
2018
2017
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

Cash and cash equivalents (per balance sheet)
Closing cash and cash equivalents (per statements of cash
flows)

1,008

877

1,000

858

1,008

877

1,000

858

Refer Note 16 for GHWDLOVUHJDUGLQJFUHGLWULVNOLTXLGLW\ULVNDQGPDUNHWULVNDULVLQJIURPILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV
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8 Current Assets – Receivables
Consolidated
30 June
30 June
2018
2017
$'000
$'000
Current Receivables
Goods and Service Tax recoverable from ATO
Receivables

62
161
223

29
29

30 June
2018
$'000

Commission
30 June
2017
$'000

62
161
223

29
29

Details regarding credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including financial assets that are either past due or impaired,
DUHGLVFORVHGLQ1RWH

9 Non-Current assets - Plant and equipment

Consolidated and Commission
At 1 July 2017 - fair value
Gross Carrying Amount
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net carrying amount
At 30 June 2018 - fair value
Gross Carrying Amount
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net carrying amount

Plant and
Equipment
$'000

Leasehold
Improvement
$'000

590
(186)
404

1,108
(213)
895

1,698
(399)
1,299

656
(278)
378

1,108
(324)
784

1,764
(602)
1,162

Total
$'000

Reconciliation
A reconciliation of the carrying amount of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the
current reporting period is set out EHORZ
Plant and
Leasehold
Equipment
Improvement
Total
$'000
$'000
$'000
Year ended 30 June 2018
Net carrying amount at start of year
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense
Write-back on disposals
Net carrying amount at end of year

404
80
(2)
(104)
378

895
(111)
784

Plant and
Equipment
$'000

Leasehold
Improvement
$'000

Total
$'000

At 1 July 2016 - fair value
At Fair Value
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net carrying amount

602
(97)
505

1,108
(102)
1,006

1,710
199
1,511

At 30 June 2017 - fair value
At Fair Value
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net carrying amount

590
(186)
404

1,108
(213)
895

1,698
(399)
1,299

Natural Resource Commission
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9 Non-Current assets - Plant and equipment (cont'd)
Reconciliation
A reconciliation of the carrying amount of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the
SUHYLRXVUHSRUWLQJSHULRGLVVHWRXWEHORZ
Leasehold
Plant and
Improvement
Total
Equipment
$'000
$'000
$'000
Year ended 30 June 2017
Net carrying amount at start of year
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense
Write-back on disposals
Net carrying amount at end of year

505
(13)
(97)
9
404

1,006
(111)
895

1,511
(13)
(208)
9
1,299

2018
$'000

Commission
2017
$'000

625
8
633

431
9
440

10 Current Liabilities - Payables
Consolidated
2018
2017
$'000
$'000
Payables
Accrued salaries, wages and on costs
Creditors
Personnel Services

8
625
633

8
451
459

Details regarding credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including a maturity analysis of the above payables, are
GLVFORVHGLQ1RWH

11 Current / Non-Current Liabilities - Provision
Consolidated
2018
2017
$'000
$'000
Current
Employee benefits and related on-costs
Annual leave
Long service leave on-costs
Payroll tax
Fringe benefits tax
Personnel Services
Total current provisions

Natural Resource Commission
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178
38
38
1
255
255

181
30
28
239
239

2018
$'000

Commission
2017
$'000

247
247
247

239
239
239
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11 Current / Non-Current Liabilities - Provision (cont'd)
Consolidated
2018
2017
$'000
$'000
Non-current
Employee benefits and related on-costs
Long service leave on-costs
Payroll tax
Personnel Services
Other Provisions
Restoration Cost (Make good 52 Martin Place Provision)
Total non-current provisions

2018
$'000

Commission
2017
$'000

3
2
5

2
2
4

5
5

4
4

125
130

125
129

125
130

125
129

Movement in Provisions ( other than employee benefits)
Restoration
Costs
$ '000
125
125

Carry forward amount at the beginning of financial year
Additional Provisions recognised:

12 Commitments for Expenditure
Consolidated
2018
2017
$'000
$'000

2018
$'000

Commission
2017
$'000

408
1,631
1,019
3,058

408
1,631
1,427
3,466

Future non-cancellable operating lease rentals not provided for and payable:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years
Total (including GST)

408
1,631
1,019
3,058

408
1,631
1,427
3,466

Commitments include GST of $278k (2017: $315k) which is expected to be recovered from the Australian Taxation
2IILFH $72 

13 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
7KH&RPPLVVLRQLVQRWDZDUHRIDQ\FRQWLQJHQWOLDELOLWLHVDQGRUFRQWLQJHQWDVVHWVDVVRFLDWHGZLWKLWVRSHUDWLRQV

14 Budget Review
Net Results
The net result is under budget by $125k, as a result of lower than expected employee related costs offset against the
KLJKHUFRVWVIRURWKHURSHUDWLQJFRVWVLQFOXGLQJWKHFRQVXOWDQWFDWHJRU\

Natural Resource Commission
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Notes to the financial statements
for the ended 30 June 2018

14 Budget Review (cont'd)
Assets and Liabilities
Current assets are $710k higher than the budget due to an increase in cash held at the end of financial year to meet
year end accruals and payables
Total net assets are higher than the budget by $397k GXHWRFDVKKROGLQJV
Current Liabilities are $427k higher than the budget duHWRLQFUHDVHLQSD\DEOHV
Total non-current liabilities are $99k lower than the budget due to lower expense Asset Remediation and
Restoration H[SHQVH
Cash flows
Cash flows from Operating Activities are $6k higher than the budget as actual payments were less than the budget
IRUHFDVW

15 Reconciliation of Cash Flows from Operating Activities to Net Result
Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to the net result as reported in the statements of comprehensive
LQFRPHDVIROORZV

Net cash flow from operating activities
Depreciation and amortisation
Decrease / (increase) in provisions
Increase / (decrease) in receivables
Decrease / (increase) in creditors
Decrease / (increase) in other liabilities
Net gain / (loss) on sale of plant and equipment
Net Result

Consolidated
2018
2017
$'000
$'000

2018
$'000

Commission
2017
$'000

211
(215)
(9)
195
(183)
(2)
(3)

222
(215)
(9)
195
(194)
(2)
(3)

(304)
(208)
18
(9)
(155)
(4)
(662)

(308)
(208)
32
(9)
(165)
(4)
(662)

16 Financial instruments
7KH&RPPLVVLRQ VSULQFLSDOILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVDUHRXWOLQHGEHORZ7KHVHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVDULVHGLUHFWO\IURPWKH
&RPPLVVLRQ VRSHUDWLRQVRUDUHUHTXLUHGWRILQDQFHWKH&RPPLVVLRQ VRSHUDWLRQV7KH&RPPLVVLRQGRHVQRWHQWHULQWR
or trade financial iQVWUXPHQWV7KH&RPPLVVLRQGRHVQRWXVHILQDQFLDOGHULYDWLYHV
The Commission's main risks arising from financial instruments are outlined below, together with the Commission's
REMHFWLYHVSROLFLHVDQGSURFHVVHVIRUPHDVXULQJDQGPDQDJLQJULVN)XUWKHUTuantitative and qualitative disclosures
DUHLQFOXGHGWKURXJKRXWWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
(a)

Financial instrument categories

Financial Assets

Note

Category

Consolidated
Class
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables1
Financial Liabilities

7
8
Note

N/A
Loans and receivables (at
amortised cost)
Category

Consolidated:
Class
Payables2

10

Natural Resource Commission
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Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost

Carrying
Amount
2018
$'000

Carrying
Amount
2017
$'000

1,008
161

877
-

Carrying
Amount
2018
$'000

Carrying
Amount
2017
$'000

633

459
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16 Financial instruments (cont'd)
Financial Assets

Note

Category

Commission
Class:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables1
Financial Liabilities

7
8
Note

N/A
Loans and receivables (at
amortised cost)
Category

Class:
Payables2

10

Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost

Notes:

Carrying
Amount
2018
$'000

Carrying
Amount
2017
$'000

1,000
161

858
-

Carrying
Amount
2018
$'000

Carrying
Amount
2017
$'000

633

440

-

-

([FOXGHVVWDWXWRU\UHFHLYDEOHVDQGSUHSD\PHQWV LHQRWZLWKLQVFRSHRI$$6%
([FOXGHVVWDWXWRU\SD\DEOHVDQGXQHDUQHGUHYHQXH LHQRWZLWKLQVFRSHRI$$6%
(b)

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Commission's debtors defaulting on their contractual obligations,
UHVXOWLQJLQDILQDQFLDOORVVWRWKH&RPPLVVLRQ7KHPD[LPXPH[SRVXUHWRFUHGLWULVNLVJHQHUDOO\UHSUHVHQWHGE\WKH
carrying aPRXQWRIWKHILQDQFLDODVVHWV QHWRIDQ\DOORZDQFHIRULPSDLUPHQW 
&UHGLWULVNDULVHVIURPWKHILQDQFLDODVVHWVRIWKH&RPPLVVLRQLQFOXGLQJFDVKUHFHLYDEOHVDQGDXWKRULW\GHSRVLWV1R
FROODWHUDOLVKHOGE\WKH&RPPLVVLRQ7KH&RPPLVVLRQKDVQRWJUDQWHGDQ\ILQDQFLDOJXDUDQWHHV
Cash
Cash comprises cash on hand and bank balances within the NSW Treasury Banking System in paragraph (e)
Receivables - trade debtors
$OOWUDGHGHEWRUVDUHUHFRJQLVHGDVDPRXQWVUHFHLYDEOHDWEDODQFHGDWH&ROOHctability of trade debtors is reviewed on
DQRQJRLQJEDVLV3URFHGXUHVDVHVWDEOLVKHGLQWKH7UHDVXUHU V'LUHFWLRQVDUHIROORZHGWRUHFRYHURXWVWDQGLQJ
DPRXQWVLQFOXGLQJOHWWHUVRIGHPDQG'HEWVZKLFKDUHNQRZQWREHXQFROOHFWLEOHDUHZULWWHQRII$QDOORwance for
LPSDLUPHQWLVUDLVHGZKHQWKHUHLVREMHFWLYHHYLGHQFHWKDWWKHHQWLW\ZLOOQRWEHDEOHWRFROOHFWDOODPRXQWVGXH7KLV
evidence includes past experience, and current and expected changes in economic conditions and debtor credit
UDWLQJV1RLQWHUHVWLVHDUQHGRQWUDGHGHEWRUV6DOHVDUHPDGHRQGD\WHUPV
As at 3-XQHWKHDJHLQJDQDO\VLVRIWUDGHGHEWRUVLQGLFDWHVWZRLQYRLFHVWRWDOLQJNRZHGE\DVLQJOHGHEWRU7KH
GHEWRULVD16:SXEOLFVHFWRUDJHQF\ZLWKD$$$FUHGLWUDWLQJ:KLOVWDQLQYRLFHIRUNLVSDVWGXHGDWHLVQRW
considered impaired and is expected to be paid in the coming months
(c)

Liquidity risk

/LTXLGLW\ULVNLVWKHULVNWKDWWKH&RPPLVVLRQZLOOEHXQDEOHWRPHHWLWVSD\PHQWREOLJDWLRQVZKHQWKH\IDOOGXH7KH
Commission continuously manages risk through monitoring future cash flows and maturities planning to ensure
DGHTXDWHKROGLQJRIKLJKTXDOLW\OLTXLGDVVHWV
'XULQJWKHFXUUHQWDQGSULRU\HDUVWKHUHZHUHQRGHIDXOWVRUEUHDFKHVRQDQ\ORDQVSD\DEOH1RDVVHWVKDYHEHHQ
pledged as collateral. The Commission’s exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior periods' data
DQGFXUUHQWDVVHVVPHQWRIULVN
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42

Page 19 of 22
Natural Resources Commission Annual Report 2017-18

Natural Resources Commission
Notes to the financial statements
for the ended 30 June 2018

16 Financial instruments (cont'd)
The liabilities are recognised for amounts due to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether or not
LQYRLFHG$PRXQWVRZLQJWRVXSSOLHUV ZKLFKDUHXQVHFXUHG DUHVHWWOHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHSROLF\VHWRXWLQ16:
7&)RUVPDOOEXVLQHVVVXSSOLHUVZKHUHWHUPVDUHQRWVSHFLILHGSD\PHQWLVPDGHQRODWHUWKDQGD\VIURP
date of receipt of a corrHFWO\UHQGHUHGLQYRLFH)RURWKHUVXSSOLHUV,IWUDGHWHUPVDUHQRWVSHFLILHGSD\PHQWLVPDGH
QRODWHUWKDQWKHHQGRIWKHPRQWKIROORZLQJWKHPRQWKLQZKLFKDQLQYRLFHRUDVWDWHPHQWLVUHFHLYHG)RUVPDOO
business suppliers, where payment is not made within the specified period, simple interest must be paid automatically
XQOHVVDQH[LVWLQJFRQWUDFWVSHFLILHVRWKHUZLVH)RUSD\PHQWWRRWKHUVXSSOLHUV7KH&RPPLVVLRQHU RUDSHUVRQ
appointed by the Commissioner) may automatically pay the supplier simple inWHUHVW1RLQWHUHVWIRUODWHSD\PHQWZDV
paid during the year 2017-2018 (2016-2017 QLO 
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Commission's financial liabilities, together with the interest rate
H[SRVXUH
Maturity Analysis and interest rate exposure of financial liabilities
$'000
Interest Rate
Exposure
Non-interest
bearing

Nominal
Amount 1
Consolidated
2018
Payables:
Accrued salaries,
wages and on-costs
Creditors

Maturity Dates
< 1 yr

1-5 yrs

> 5 yrs

8

8

8

-

-

625
633

625
633

625
633

-

-

2017
Payables:
Accrued salaries,
wages and on-costs
Creditors

8

8

8

-

-

451
459

451
459

451
459

-

-

$'000
Interest Rate
Exposure
Non-interest
bearing

Nominal
Amount1
Commission
2018
Payables:
Personnel Services
Creditors

2017
Payables:
Personnel Services
Creditors

Maturity Dates
< 1 yr

1-5 yrs

> 5 yrs

8
625
633

8
625
633

8
625
633

-

-

9
431
440

9
431
440

9
431
440

-

-

Note

The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class of financial liabilities based
RQWKHHDUOLHVWGDWHRQZKLFKWKHHQWLW\FDQEHUHTXLUHGWRSD\7KHUHLVQRLQWHUHVWLPSDFWRQWKHVHILQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV
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16 Financial instruments (cont'd)
(d)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
LQPDUNHWSULFHV7KH&RPPLVVLRQKDVQRERUURZLQJVQRH[SRVXUHWRIRUHLJQFXUUHQF\ULVNDQGGRHVQRWHQWHULQWR
FRPPRGLW\FRQWUDFWV
The effect on profit and equity due to a reasonably possible change in risk variable is outlined in the information below,
IRULQWHUHVWUDWHULVNDQGRWKHUSULFHULVN$UHDVRQDEO\SRVVLEOHFKDQJHLQULVNYDULDEOHKDVEHHQGHWHUPLQHGDIWHU
taking into account the economic environment in which the Commission operates and the time frame for the
DVVHVVPHQW LHXQWLOWKHHQGRIWKHQH[WDQQXDOUHSRUWLQJSHULRG 7KHVHQVLWLYLW\DQDO\VLVLVEDVHGRQULVNH[SRVXUHV
LQH[LVWHQFHDWWKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQGDWH7he analysis is performed on the same basis as for 2016-17
7KHDQDO\VLVDVVXPHVWKDWDOORWKHUYDULDEOHVUHPDLQFRQVWDQW
(e)

Interest rate risk

The Commission does not account for any fixed rate financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or as
DYDLODEOHIRUVDOH7KHUHIRUHIRUWKHVHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVDFKDQJHLQLQWHUHVWUDWHVZRXOGQRWDIIHFWSURILWRUORVVRU
HTXLW\$UHDVRQDEO\SRVVLEOHFKDQJHRI- LVXVHGFRQVLVWHQWZLWKFXUUHQWWUHQGVLQLQWHUHVWUDWHV7KHEDVLVZLOl
EHUHYLHZHGDQQXDOO\DQGDPHQGHGZKHUHWKHUHLVDVWUXFWXUDOFKDQJHLQWKHOHYHORILQWHUHVWUDWHYRODWLOLW\7KH
&RPPLVVLRQ VH[SRVXUHWRLQWHUHVWUDWHULVNLVVHWRXWEHORZ
-1%
+1%
Profit
Equity
Profit
Equity
Carrying
Consolidated
Amount
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
2018
Financial assets
(10)
(10)
10
10
Cash and cash equivalents
1,008
Total
1,008
(10)
(10)
10
10

2017
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

(9)
(9)

877
877

(9)
(9)

9
9

-1%
Commission
2018
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

2017
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

Natural Resource Commission
44

Carrying
Amount

9
9

+1%

Profit

Equity

Profit

Equity

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

1,000
1,000

(10)
(10)

(10)
(10)

10
10

10
10

858
858

(9)
(9)

(9)
(9)

9
9

9
9
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16 Financial instruments (cont'd)
(f)

Fair value measurement
(i)

Fair value compared to carrying amount

)LQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVDUHJHQHUDOO\UHFRJQLVHGDWFRVW7KHDPRUWLVHGFRVWRIILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVUHFRJQLVHGLQWKH
statement of financial position approximates the fair value, because of the short-term nature of many of the financial
LQVWUXPHQWV

17 Related Party Disclosures
The entity’s key management personnel compensation details for the period ending June 2018 are as follows:
2018
Short term employee benefits:
$‘000
Salaries
Other monetary allowances
Non-monetary benefits
Other long-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Termination benefits
Total remuneration

542
18
16
576

2017
$‘000
552
17
13
582

During the year, the Natural Resources Commission did not enter into any transactions with key management
SHUVRQQHOWKHLUFORVHIDPLO\PHPEHUVDQGFRQWUROOHGRUMRLQWO\FRQWUROOHGHQWLWLHVWKHUHRI

18 Events after the Reporting Period
7KHUHDUHQRHYHQWVVXEVHTXHQWWREDODQFHGDWHZKLFKPDWHULDOO\DIIHFWWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
End of audited financial statements

Natural Resource Commission
Natural Resources Commission Annual Report 2017-18

Page 22 of 22
45

Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency

To Members of the New South Wales Parliament

Opinion
I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency
(the Agency), which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended
30 June 2018, the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2018, the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory information
In my opinion, the financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Agency as at 30 June 2018, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards
are in accordance with section 41B of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 (PF&A Act) and
the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2015
0\RSLQLRQVKRXOGEHUHDGLQFRQMXQFWLRQZLWKWKHUHVWRIWKLVUHSRUW

Basis for Opinion
,FRQGXFWHGP\DXGLWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK$XVWUDOLDQ$XGLWLQJ6WDQGDUGV0\UHVSRQVLELOLWLHVXQGHUWKH
standards are described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
VHFWLRQRIP\UHSRUW
I am independent of the Agency in accordance with the requirements of the:
Australian Auditing Standards
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants’ (APES 110).
,KDYHIXOILOOHGP\RWKHUHWKLFDOUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK$3(6
Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:
providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General
mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of public sector agencies
precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-DXGLWVHUYLFHV
I believe the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
DXGLWRSLQLRQ
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Other Information
Other information comprises the information included in the Agency’s annual report for the year ended
30 June 2018, other than the financial statements and my Independent Auditor’s Report thereon. The
Natural Resources Commissioner LVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHRWKHULQIRUPDWLRQ$WWKHGDWHRIWKLV
Independent Auditor’s Report, the other information I have received comprise the Statement by the
1DWXUDO5HVRXUFHV&RPPLVVLRQHUSXUVXDQWWRVHFWLRQ& % RIWKH3) $$FW
0\RSLQLRQRQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVGRHVQRWFRYHUWKHRWKHULQIRUPDWLRQ$FFRUGLQJO\,GRQRW
express any form of assurance conclusion on the othHULQIRUPDWLRQ
In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
PLVVWDWHG
If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude there is a material misstatement of the other
LQIRUPDWLRQ,PXVWUHSRUWWKDWIDFW
,KDYHQRWKLQJWRUHSRUWLQWKLVUHJDUG

The Commissioner’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements
The Commissioner is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the PF&A Act, and for such internal control
as the Commissioner determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements that DUHIUHHIURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURU
In preparing the financial statements, the Commissioner is responsible for assessing the Agency’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting except where the Agency will be dissolved by an Act of
Parliament or otherwise cease operations

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
My objectives are to:
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
issue an Independent Auditor’s Report including my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
DFFRUGDQFHZLWK$XVWUDOLDQ$XGLWLQJ6WDQGDUGVZLOODOZD\VGHWHFWPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWV
Misstatements can arise from IUDXGRUHUURU0LVVWDWHPHQWVDUHFRQVLGHUHGPDWHULDOLILQGLYLGXDOO\RU
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take
EDVHGRQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board website at: ZZZDXDVEJRYDXDXGLWRUVBUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVDUSGIThe
description forms part of my auditor’s report.
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My opinion does not provide assurance:
that the Agency carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically
about the assumptions used in formulating the budget figures disclosed in the financial
statements
about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial
statements on any website where they may be presented
DERXWDQ\RWKHULQIRUPDWLRQZKLFKPD\KDYHEHHQK\SHUOLQNHGWRIURPWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

Caroline Karakatsanis
Director, Financial Audit Services

21 September 2018
SYDNEY
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17 September 2018

Statement by the Natural Resources Commissioner
as head of the Natural Resources Commission
For both the Natural Resources Commission and Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency
financial statements
Pursuant to section 41C(1B) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, I state to the best of my
knowledge and belief that:
a)
the accompanying financial statements in respect of the year ended 30 June 2018 have been
prepared in accordance with applicable Australian Accounting Standards, the provisions of the
Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, applicable clauses of the Public Finance and Audit Regulation
2015 and the Financial Reporting Directions published in the Financial Reporting Code for NSW
General Government Sector Entities, and
b)
the statements exhibit a true and fair view of the financial position of the Parliamentary
Counsel’s Office as at 30 June 2018, and transactions for the year then ended, and
c)
there are no circumstances that would render any particulars included in the financial
statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

Yours sincerely

Dr John Keniry AM
Commissioner

Level 6, 52 Martin Place, Sydney NSW 2000 Australia. All correspondence to: GPO Box 5341, Sydney NSW 2001
Telephone 02 9228 4844 Facsimile 02 9228 4970 Website: www.nrc.nsw.gov.au ABN 36 106 334 821
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Natural Resources Commission
Staff Agency
Financial statements
for the period ended 30 June 2018
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Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency
Statement of comprehensive income
for the period ended 30 June 2018

Notes

Actual
2018
$'000

Actual
2017
$'000

2(a)

2,789

2,717

2,789

2,717

2,693
96

2,751
(34)

2,789

2,717

-

-

Total Other comprehensive income

-

-

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

-

-

Expenses excluding losses
Operating expenses
Employee related expenses
Total Expenses excluding losses
Revenue
Personnel services
Acceptance by the Crown Entity of employee benefits and other liabilities
Total Revenue
Net result

3(a)
3(b)

Other comprehensive income

7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVIRUPSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

Nautral Resources Commission Staff Agency
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Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency
Statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2018

Notes

Actual
2018
$'000

Actual
2017
$'000

8
260
268

19
252
271

268

271

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Total Current Assets

4
5

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

6
7

8
255
263

28
239
267

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities

7

5
5

4
4

268

271

Total Liabilities
Net Assets

-

-

EQUITY
Total Equity

-

-

The accompanying notes form part RIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

Nautral Resources Commission Staff Agency
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Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency
Statement of changes in equity
for the period ended 30 June 2018

Accumulated
Funds
$'000

Total
$'000

Balance at 1 July 2017

-

-

Net result for the period

-

-

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

-

Balance at 30 June 2018

-

-

Balance at 1 July 2016

-

-

Net result for the period

-

-

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

-

Balance at 30 June 2017

-

-

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency
Statement of cash flows
for the period ended 30 June 2018

Notes

Actual
2018

Actual
2017

$'000

$'000

(2,792)
(2,792)

(2,789)
(2,789)

2,781
2,781

2,785
2,785

(11)

(4)

(11)
19

(4)
23

8

19

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Payments
Employee related
Total Payments

Receipts
Other – Personal Services Related
Total Receipts
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

9

NET INCREASE /(DECREASE) IN CASH
Opening cash and cash equivalents
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

4

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency
Notes to the financial statements
for the period ended 30 June 2018

1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a)

Reporting entity
The Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency (Staff Agency) is a public service agency established under the
Administrative Arrangements Order 2014 and is pursuant to Part 2 of Schedule 1 of the Government Sector
Employment Act 2013 (formerly the Natural Resources Commission Division established under the former Public
Sector Employment and Management Act 2002 
It is a not-for-SURILWHQWLW\DVSURILWLVQRWLWVSULQFLSDOREMHFWLYH,WLVFRQVROidated as part of the NSW Total State Sector
$FFRXQWV,WLVGRPLFLOHGLQ$XVWUDOLDDQGLWVSULQFLSDORIILFHLVDW/HYHO6, 52 Martin Place, 6\GQH\
7KH6WDII$JHQF\ VREMHFWLYHLVWRSURYLGHSHUVRQQHOVHUYLFHVWRWKH1DWXUDO5HVRXUFHV&RPPLVVLRQ
The financial statements for the Period ended 30 June 2018 have been authorised for issue by the Commissioner on
14th September 2018

(b)

Basis of preparation
The Staff Agency's financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared on
accrual basis in accordance with:
x
x
x

applicable Australian Accounting Standards (which include Australian Accounting Interpretations)
the requirements of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 and Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2015 and
the Financial Reporting Directions published in the Financial Reporting Code for NSW General Government
6HFWRU(QWLWLHVRULVVXHGE\WKH7UHDVXUHU

Judgements, key assumptions and estimations management has made are disclosed in the relevant notes to the
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
$OODPRXQWVDUHURXQGHGWRWKHQHDUHVWRQHWKRXVDQGGROODUVDQGDUHH[SUHVVHGLQ$XVWUDOLDQFXUUHQF\
(c)

Statement of compliance
The Staff Agency's financial statements and notes comply with Australian Accounting Standards, which include
$XVWUDOLDQ$FFRXQWLQJ,QWHUSUHWDWLRQV

(d)

Income recognition
,QFRPHLVPHDVXUHGDWWKHIDLUYDOXHRIWKHFRQVLGHUDWLRQRUFRQWULEXWLRQUHFHLYHGRUUHFHLYDEOH
Revenue is received for cost of providing SHUVRQQHOVHUYLFHVIRUWKH\HDUWRWKH1DWXUDO5HVRXUFHV&RPPLVVLRQ

(e)

Assets
(i)

Receivables
Receivables represent items related to the recovery of personnel services costs incurred in the Staff Agency
and SD\DEOHE\WKH&RPPLVVLRQ
Short-term receivables with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount where the effect
RIGLVFRXQWLQJLVLPPDWHULDO

(f)

Liabilities
(i)

Payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Staff AgHQF\DQGRWKHUDPRXQWV
Payables are recognised initially at fair value, usually based on the tUDQVDFWLRQFRVWRUIDFHYDOXHShort-term
payables with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount where the effect of
discounting is immDWHULDO

Nautral Resources Commission Staff Agency
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Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency
Notes to the financial statements
for the period ended 30 June 2018

1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)

(ii)

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when: the Staff Agency has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable
HVWLPDWHFDQEHPDGHRIWKHDPRXQWRIWKHREOLJDWLRQWhen the Staff Agency expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
VHSDUDWHDVVHWEXWRQO\ZKHQWKHUHLPEXUVHPHQWLVYLUWXDOO\FHUWDLQ7KHH[SHQVHUHODWLQJWRDSURYLVLRQLV
presented net of any reimbursement in the 6WDWHPHQWRI&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPH

(g)

Employee benefits
(i)

Salaries and wages, annual leave and sick leave
Salaries and wages (including non-monetary benefits) and paid sick leave that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the service are recognised
DQGPHDVXUHGDWWKHXQGLVFRXQWHGDPRXQWVRIWKHEHQHILWV
Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual reporting
SHULRGLQZKLFKWKHHPSOR\HHVUHQGHUWKHUHODWHGVHUYLFH$VVXFKLWLVUHTXLUHGWREHPHDVXUHGDWSUHVHQW
value in accordance with AASB 119 Employee Benefits (although short-FXWPHWKRGVDUHSHUPLWWHG $FWXDULDO
advice obtained by Treasury has confirmed that the use of a nominal approach plus the annual leave on annual
OHDYHOLDELOLW\ XVLQJRIWKHQRPLQDOYDOXHRIDQQXDOOHDYH FDQEHXVHGWR approximate the present value
of the annual leave liability. The Staff Agency has assessed the actuarial advice based on the entity’s
FLUFXPVWDQFHVDQGKDVGHWHUPLQHGWKDWWKHHIIHFWRIGLVFRXQWLQJLVLPPDWHULDOWRDQQXDOOHDYH
Unused non-vesting sick leave does not give rise to a liability as it is not considered probable that sick leave
WDNHQLQWKHIXWXUHZLOOEHJUHDWHUWKDQWKHEHQHILWVDFFUXHGLQWKHIXWXUH

(ii)

Long service leave and superannuation:
The Staff Agency's liabilities IRUORQJVHUYLFHOHDYHDUHDVVXPHGE\WKH&URZQ(QWLW\7KH6WDII$JHQF\
accounts for the liability as having been extinguished resulting in the amount assumed being shown as part of
the non-monetary revenue item described as ''Acceptance by the Crown Entity of employee benefits and other
OLDELOLWLHV 
Long service leave is measured at present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
VHUYLFHVSURYLGHGXSWRWKHUHSRUWLQJGDWH&RQVLGHUation is given to the certain factors based on actuarial
review, including IXWXUHZDJHDQGVDODU\OHYHOVH[SHULHQFHRIHPSOR\HHGHSDUWXUHVDQGSHULRGVRIVHUYLFH
The expected future payments are discounted using Commonwealth government bond rate at the reporting
date
The superannuation expense for the financial year is determined by using the formulae specified in the
7UHDVXUHU V'LUHFWLRQV7KHH[SHQVHIRUFHUWDLQVXSHUDQQXDWLRQVFKHPHV LH%DVLF%HQHILWDQG)LUVW6WDWH
6XSHU LVFDOFXODWHGDVDSHUFHQWDJHRIWKHHPSOR\HHV VDODU\ For other supeUDQQXDWLRQVFKHPHV LH6WDWH
Superannuation Scheme and State Authorities Superannuation Scheme), the expense is calculated as a
PXOWLSOHRIWKHHPSOR\HHV VXSHUDQQXDWLRQFRQWULEXWLRQV

(iIi)

Consequential on-costs:
Consequential costs to employment are recognised as liabilities and expenses where the employee benefits to
ZKLFKWKH\UHODWHKDYHEHHQUHFRJQLVHG7KLVLQFOXGHVRXWVWDQGLQJDPRXQWVRISD\UROOWD[ZRUNHUV 
FRPSHQVDWLRQLQVXUDQFHSUHPLXPVDQGIULQJHEHQHILWVWD[
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Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency
Notes to the financial statements
for the period period ended 30 June 2018
1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
(h)

Personnel Services:
The Personnel Services are provided by the Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency according to the
Administrative Arrangements Order 2014 and is pursuant to Part 2 of Schedule 1 of the Government Sector
Employment Act 2013 (formerly the Natural Resources Commission Division established under the former Public
Sector Employment and Management Act 2002 

(i)

Comparative information:
Except when an Australian Accounting Standard permits or requires otherwise, comparative information is disclosed
LQUHVSHFWRIWKHSUHYLRXVSHULRGIRUDOODPRXQWVUHSRUWHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

(j)

Changes in accounting policy, including new or revised Australian Accounting Standards
(i)

Effective for the first time in 2017 18
The accounting policies applied in 2017-18 are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for
WKHIROORZLQJVWDQGDUGVDGRSWHGIRUWKHILUVWWLPHLQ7KHLPSDFWRIWKHVH6WDQGDUGVLQWKHSeriod of
LQLWLDODSSOLFDWLRQLVQRWPDWHULDO
x AASB 2016-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
8QUHDOLVHG/RVVHV
x AASB 2016-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to
$$6%
x AASB 2016-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Recoverable Amount of
Non-Cash-Generating Specialised Assets of Not-for-Profit Entities
x AASB 2017-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Further Annual Improvements
2014-&\FOH

(ii)

Issued but not yet effective
NSW public sector entities are not permitted to early adopt new Australian Accounting Standards, unless
Treasury determines otherwise
The following new Australian Accounting Standards have not been applied and are not yet effective
(TC 18-01)
x AASB 9 Financial Instruments
x AASB 15, AASB 2014-5, AASB 2015-8 and 2016-3 regarding Revenue from Contracts with Customers
x AASB 16 Leases
x AASB 17 Insurance Contracts
x AASB 1058 Income of Not for profit Entities
x AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors
x AASB 2016-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions
x AASB 2016-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Applying AASB 9 with AASB 4
Insurance Contracts
x AASB 2016-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Deferral of AASB 15 for Not-for-Profit
(QWLWLHV
x AASB 2016-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Australian Implementation Guidance
for Not-for-Profit Entities

The Commission anticipates that adoption of these standards in the period of initial application will have no
material impact on the financial statements

Nautral Resources Commission Staff Agency
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Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency
Notes to the financial statements
for the period ended 30 June 2018

2 Expenses Excluding Losses
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

2,453
115
96
9
102
14
2,789

2,523
125
(34)
8
106
(11)
2,717

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

2,693
2,693

2,751
2,751

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

96
96

(34)
(34)

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

8
8

19
19

(a) Employee related expenses
Salaries and wages (including annual leave)
Superannuation - defined contribution plans
Long service leave
Workers compensation insurance
Payroll tax and fringe benefit tax
On-costs - annual leave and long service leave

3 Revenue

(a) Personnel services
Personnel services

(b) Acceptance by the Crown Entity of employee benefits and other liabilities
Long service leave

4 Current Assets – Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand

Cash assets recognised in the statement of financial position are reconciled at the end of the financial year to the
statement of cash flows as follows:

Cash (per statement of financial position)
Closing cash (per statement of cash flows)

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

8
8

19
19

5HIHU1RWHIRUGHWDLOVUHJDUGLQJFUHGLWULVNOLTXLGLW\ULVNDQGPDUNHWULVNDULVLQJIURPILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV
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Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency
Notes to the financial statements
for the period ended 30 June 2018

5 Current Assets – Receivables

Personnel services

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

260
260

252
252

Details regarding credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including financial assets that are either past due or impaired,
DUHGLVFORVHGLQ1RWH

6 Current Liabilities – Payables

Accrued salaries, wages and on-costs
Creditors

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

8
8

8
20
28

Details regarding credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including a maturity analysis of the above payables, are
GLVFORVHGLQ1RWH

7 Current / Non-Current Liabilities – Provisions

Current
Employee benefits and related on-costs
Annual leave
Long service leave
Payroll tax
Fringe benefits tax

Non-current
Employee benefits and related on-costs
Long service leave
Payroll tax

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

178
38
38
1
255

181
30
28
239

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

3
2
5

2
2
4

255
5
8
268

259
4
8
271

Aggregate employee benefits and related on-costs
Provisions - current
Provisions - non-current
Accrued salaries, wages and on-costs (Note 6)

8

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

7KH6WDII$JHQF\LVQRWDZDUHRIDQ\FRQWLQJHQWOLDELOLWLHVDQGRUFRQWLQJHQWDVVHWVDVVRFLDWHGZLWKLWVRSHUDWLRQV

Nautral Resources Commission Staff Agency

Natural Resources Commission Annual Report 2017-18

Page 9 of 12

59

Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency
Notes to the financial statements
for the period ended 30 June 2018

9 Reconciliation of Cash Flows from Operating Activities to Net Result
Reconciliation of cash flow from operating activities to the net result as reported in the statement of comprehensive
income as follows;
2018
2017
$'000
$'000

Net cash flow from operating activities
Decrease / (increase) in provisions
Increase / (decrease) in receivables
Decrease / (increase) in creditors
Net result

(11)
(17)
8
20
-

(4)
38
(34)
-

10 Financial Instruments
7KH6WDII$JHQF\ VSULQFLSDOILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVDUHRXWOLQHGEHORZ7KHVHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVDULVHGLUHFWO\IURPWKH
6WDII$JHQF\ VRSHUDWLRQVRUDUHUHTXLUHGWRILQDQFHWKH6WDII$JHQF\ VRSHUDWLRQV7KH6WDII Agency does not enter
LQWRRUWUDGHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVLQFOXGLQJGHULYDWLYHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVIRUVSHFXODWLYHSXUSRVHV
The Staff Agency's main risks arising from financial instruments are outlined below, together with the Staff Agency's
objectLYHVSROLFLHVDQGSURFHVVHVIRUPHDVXULQJDQGPDQDJLQJULVN)XUWKHUTXDQWLWDWLYHDQGTXDOLWDWLYHGLVFORVXUHV
DUHLQFOXGHGWKURXJKRXWWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
The Commissioner has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of risk management and reviews and
DSSURYHVSROLFLHVIRUPDQDJLQJULVNV7KHULVNSROLF\DQGIUDPHZRUNDUHHVWDEOLVKHGWRLGHQWLI\DQGDQDO\VHWKHULVNV
IDFHGE\WKH&RPPLVVLRQWRVHWULVNDSSHWLWHFRQWUROVDQGPRQLWRUULVNV6XSSRUWLQJWKH&RPPLVVLRQHUZLWKWKLV
governance responsibility and compliance with the policy is the Audit and Risk Committee, internal auditors and
([HFXWLYH'LUHFWRURQDFRQWLQXRXVEDVLV
(a)

Financial instrument categories

Financial Assets

Note

Category

Class:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables1
Financial Liabilities

4
5
Note

6

Carrying
Amount
2017
$'000

8
260

19
252

Carrying
Amount
2018
$'000

Carrying
Amount
2017
$'000

8

28

N/A
Receivables (at amortised cost)
Category

Class:

Payables2

Carrying
Amount
2018
$'000

Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost

Notes:
 ([FOXGHVVWDWXWRU\UHFHLYDEOHVDQGSUHSD\PHQWV LHQRWZLWKLQVFRSHRI$$6%
 ([FOXGHVVWDWXURU\SD\DEOHVDQGXQHDUQHGUHYHQXH LH not within scope of AASB 7)
(b)

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Staff Agency's debtors defaulting on their contractual obligations,
UHVXOWLQJLQDILQDQFLDOORVVWRWKH6WDII$JHQF\7KHPD[LPXPH[SRVXUHWRFUHGLWULVNLVJHQHUDOO\UHSUHVHQWHGE\ the
FDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKHILQDQFLDODVVHWV QHWRIDQ\DOORZDQFHIRULPSDLUPHQW 
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and bank balances within tKH16:7UHDVXU\%DQNLQJ6\VWHP
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Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency
Notes to the financial statements
for the period ended 30 June 2018
10

Financial Instruments (cont’d)

Receivables - trade debtors
$OOWUDGHGHEWRUVDUHUHFRJQLVHGDVDPRXQWVUHFHLYDEOHDWEDODQFHGDWH&ROOHFWDELOLW\RIWUDGHGHEWRUVLVUHYLHZHGRQ
DQRQJRLQJEDVLV3URFHGXUHVDVHVWDEOLVKHGLQWKH7UHDVXUHU V'LUHFWLRQVDUHIROORZHGWRUHFRYHURXWVWDQGLQJ
amounts, including letters RIGHPDQG'HEWVZKLFKDUHNQRZQWREHXQFROOHFWLEOHDUHZULWWHQRII$QDOORZDQFHIRU
LPSDLUPHQWLVUDLVHGZKHQWKHUHLVREMHFWLYHHYLGHQFHWKDWWKHHQWLW\ZLOOQRWEHDEOHWRFROOHFWDOODPRXQWVGXH7KLV
evidence includes past experience, and current and expected changes in economic conditions and debtor credit
UDWLQJV1RLQWHUHVWLVHDUQHGRQWUDGHGHEWRUV6DOHVDUHPDGHwithin agreed WHUPV
The Staff Agency is not materially exposed to concentrations of credit risk to a single trade debtor or group RIGHEWRUV
7KHUHDUHQRGHEWRUVZKLFKDUHFXUUHQWO\QRWSDVWGXHRULPSDLUHG
(c)

Liquidity risk

/LTXLGLW\ULVNLVWKHULVNWKDWWKH6WDII$JHQF\ZLOOEHXQDEOHWRPHHWLWVSD\PHQWREOLJDWLRQVZKHQWKH\IDOOGXH
The Staff Agency continuously manages risk through monitoring future cash flows and maturities planning to ensure
DGHTXDWHKROGLQJRIKLJKTXDOLW\OLTXLGDVVHWV
During the current and prior years, there were no defaults on or breaches of any loans payaEOH1RDVVHWVKDYHEHHQ
pledged as collateral. The Staff Agency’s exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior periods' data
DQGFXUUHQWDVVHVVPHQWRIULVN
The liabilities are recognised for amounts due to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether or not
LQYRLFHG$PRXQWVRZLQJWRVXSSOLHUV ZKLFKDUHXQVHFXUHG DUHVHWWOHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHSROLF\VHWRXWLQ16:
7&)RUVPDOOEXVLQHVVVXSSOLHUVZKHUHWHUPVDUHQRWVSHFLILHGSD\PHQWLVPDGHQRODWHUthan 30 days from
GDWHRIUHFHLSWRIDFRUUHFWO\UHQGHUHGLQYRLFH)RURWKHUVXSSOLHUV,IWUDGHWHUPVDUHQRWVSHFLILHGSD\PHQWLVPDGHQR
ODWHUWKDQWKHHQGRIWKHPRQWKIROORZLQJWKHPRQWKLQZKLFKDQLQYRLFHRUDVWDWHPHQWLVUHFHLYHG)RUVPDOOEXVLQess
suppliers, where payment is not made within the specified period, simple interest must be paid automatically unless an
H[LVWLQJFRQWUDFWVSHFLILHVRWKHUZLVH)RUSD\PHQWWRRWKHUVXSSOLHUVWKH+HDGRIDQDXWKRULW\ RUDSHUVRQDSSRLQWHG
by the Head of DQDXWKRULW\ PD\DXWRPDWLFDOO\SD\WKHVXSSOLHUVLPSOHLQWHUHVW1RLQWHUHVWIRUWKHODWHSD\PHQWZDV
paid during the year 2017-2018 (2016 -2017 QLO 
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Staff Agency's financial liabilities, together with the interest rate
H[SRVXUH
Maturity Analysis and interest rate exposure of financial liabilities
$'000
Nominal
Amount1

Interest Rate
Exposure
Non-interest
bearing

2018
Payables:
Accrued salaries,
wages and on-costs
Creditors

8

8

8

-

-

8

8

8

-

-

2017
Payables:
Accrued salaries,
wages and on-costs
Creditors

8

8

8

-

-

20
28

20
28

20
28

-

-

Note:


Maturity Dates
< 1 yr

1-5 yrs

> 5 yrs

The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class of financial liabilities based
RQWKHHDUOLHVWGDWHRQZKLFKWKHHQWLW\FDQEHUHTXLUHGWRSD\7KHUHLVQRLQWHUHVWLPSDFWRQWKHVHILQDQFLDO
liabilities
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Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency
Notes to the financial statements
for the period ended 30 June 2018
10
(d)

Financial Instruments (cont’d)
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
FKDQJHVLQPDUNHWSULFH The Staff Agency has no borrowings, no exposure to foreign currency risk and does not
HQWHULQWRFRPPRGLW\FRQWUDFWV
(e)

Interest rate risk

The Agency does not account for any fixed rate financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or as
DYDLODEOHIRUVDOH7KHUHIRUHIRUWKHVHILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVDFKDQJHLQLQWHUHVWUDWHVZRXOGQRWDIIHFWSURILWRUORVV
RUHTXLW\$UHDVRQDEO\SRVVLEOHFKDQJHRI- LVXVHGFRQVLVWHQWZLWKFXUUHQWWUHQGVLQLQWHUHVWUDWHV EDVHGRQ
RIILFLDO5%$LQWHUHVWUDWHYRODWLOLW\RYHUWKHODVWILYH\HDUV 7KHEDVLVZLOOEHUHYLHZHGDQQXDOO\DQGDPHQGHGZKHUH
there is a structural change in the level of interest rate volatility. The Agency’s exposure to interest rate risk is set out
EHORZ

Carrying
Amount

Impact of 1% Increase
Profit
Equity

Impact of 1% Decrease
Profit
Equity

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

2018
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

8
8

-

-

-

-

2017
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

19
19

-

-

-

-

(f)

Fair value measurement

Fair value compared to carrying amount
Financial LQVWUXPHQWVDUHJHQHUDOO\UHFRJQLVHGDWFRVW7KHDPRUWLVHGFRVWRIILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVUHFRJQLVHGLQWKH
statement of financial position approximates the fair value, because of the short-term nature of many of the financial
LQVWUXPHQWV7KHUHDUHQRILQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVZKHUHWKHIDLUYDOXHGLIIHUVIURPWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQW

11 Related Party Disclosures
The entity’s key management personnel compensation details for the period ending June 2018 are as follows:
2018
2017
Short term employee benefits:
$‘000
$‘000
Salaries
Other monetary allowances
Non-monetary benefits
Other long-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Termination benefits
Total remuneration

542
18
16
576

552
17
13
582

During the year, the Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency did not enter into any transactions with key
PDQDJHPHQWSHUVRQQHOWKHLUFORVHIDPLO\PHPEHUVDQGFRQWUROOHGRUMRLQWO\FRQWUROOHGHQWLWLHVWKHUHRI
During the year no key management personnel services were SURYLGHGE\DVHSDUDWHPDQDJHPHQWHQWLW\

12 Events after the Reporting Period
7KHUHDUHQRHYHQWVVXEVHTXHQWWREDODQFHGDWHZKLFKPDWHULDOO\DIIHFWWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
End of audited financial statements.
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Appendix 1: Operation and performance
Commission meetings
7KH&RPPLVVLRQKHOGPHHWLQJV'U-RKQ.HQLU\ &RPPLVVLRQHU DQG0U%ULDQ*LOOLJDQ $FWLQJ&RPPLVVLRQHU DWWHQGHG
VL[DQG¿YHPHHWLQJVUHVSHFWLYHO\0U%U\FH:LOGH ([HFXWLYH'LUHFWRU DQG0V0DUHH/HRQDUG 'LUHFWRU&RUSRUDWH6HUYLFHV
DQG6HFUHWDU\WRWKH&RPPLVVLRQ DWWHQGHGDOOPHHWLQJV

External committees
The Commission staff and executives observed the Department of Premier and Cabinet led Audit and Risk Committee
PHHWLQJV

Publications
7DEOH$
Date

/LVWRISXEOLFDWLRQV
Publication

Forestry
November 2016

Coastal IFOA - Advice on Coastal IFOA remake

March 2018

Coastal IFOA - Supplementary advice on Coastal IFOA remake

Water
May 2018

Water sharing plan review – Border Rivers Regulated River Water Source 2009

June 2018

Water sharing plan review – Bellinger River Area Unregulated and Alluvial Water Sources 2008

June 2018

Water sharing plan review – Great Artesian Basin Groundwater Sources 2008

Other advice
December 2017

Evaluation of Catchment Action NSW – Final report

March 2018

Pest animal management – Review of draft regional pest animal management plans

May 2018

Environment Trust’s Linking Landscape project – Evaluation report

September 2017

Coastal protection – Advice on coastal subdivision at Forster (Kularoo Dr)

September 2017

Coastal protection – Advice on coastal subdivision at Rosedale

October 2017

Coastal protection – Advice on coastal subdivision at Salamander Bay

October 2017

Coastal protection – Advice on coastal subdivision at Maryland

December 2017

Coastal protection – Advice on coastal subdivision at Forster (Cape Hawke Dr)

Corporate
October 2017

Annual Report 2016-17

April 2018

Strategic Plan 2017-18
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Appendix 2: Funding and expenditure
Annual report production
In accordance with the Premier’s Memorandum M2013-09, the Commission is committed to minimising the cost of producing
LWVDQQXDOUHSRUW
7KLVUHSRUWZDVGHVLJQHGLQKRXVHZLWKRXWLQFXUULQJDQ\H[WHUQDOFRVWVRQLWVSURGXFWLRQ7ZRFRSLHVRIWKLVUHSRUWZHUH
SULQWHG RQUHF\FOHGSDSHU DQGSURYLGHGWRWKH3UHPLHUIRUSUHVHQWLQJWRWKH3DUOLDPHQW$IWHUWKDWWKHUHSRUWZLOOEHPDGH
DYDLODEOHRQWKH&RPPLVVLRQZHEVLWH

Consultants
7KH&RPPLVVLRQHQJDJHGWKHIROORZLQJFRQVXOWDQFLHVLQWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRG:RUNRQVRPHRIWKHVHFRQVXOWDQFLHVZDVVWLOO
SURJUHVVLQJDVDW-XQH
7DEOH$

&RQVXOWDQFLHV

Consultant

Title / Nature

Cost (incl. GST)

A. Consultancies equal to or more than $50,000
Aither Pty Ltd

Assist with exploring innovative investment and funding
models for an ongoing review

$62,549

Charlie Zammit

Assist with expert advice on an ongoing review

$61,600

2Rog Consulting Pty Ltd

Assist with expert advice on methodologies to assess old
growth forest and rainforest

$56,540

Subtotal (A)

$180,689

Subtotal (B)

$809,311

B. Consultancies less than $50,000
Various

$809,311
Total (A+B)

$990,000

Funds granted to non-community organisations
7KH&RPPLVVLRQGLGQRWJUDQWDQ\IXQGVWRQRQJRYHUQPHQWFRPPXQLW\RUJDQLVDWLRQV

Insurance
7KH16:7UHDVXU\0DQDJHG)XQGSURYLGHGLQVXUDQFHIRUZRUNHUVFRPSHQVDWLRQSURSHUW\DQGSXEOLFOLDELOLW\7KHUHZDVQR
ZRUNHUVFRPSHQVDWLRQFODLPLQWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRG
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Payment of accounts
There were no instances where penalty interest was paid in accordance with s18 of the Public Finance and Audit (General)
Regulation 1995,QDGGLWLRQWKHUHZHUHQRVLJQL¿FDQWHYHQWVWKDWDIIHFWHGSD\PHQWSHUIRUPDQFH
7DEOH$

$JHGDQDO\VLVRIDFFRXQWSD\PHQWLQ

Quarter ending

Current (within
due date)

Less than
30 days overdue

30-60 days
overdue

61-90 days
overdue

More than
90 days overdue

Sep 2017

$556,148

$78,136

-

-

-

Dec 2017

$270,523

$5,509

$12,100

$701

-

Mar 2018

$254,714

$17,247

$4,735

-

$23

Jun 2018

$580,937

-

$445

-

-

7DEOH$

5HSRUWRQDFFRXQWSD\PHQWSHUIRUPDQFHLQ

Measure

Sep 2017

Dec 2017

Mar 2018

Jun 2018

Number of accounts due for payment

98

79

37

91

Number of accounts paid on time

92

74

31

90

Actual percentage of accounts paid on time
(based on number of accounts)









Dollar amount of accounts due for payment

$634,284

$288,832

$276,672

$581,382

Dollar amount of accounts paid on time

$556,148

$270,523

$254,714

$580,937









Actual percentage of accounts paid on time
(based on dollar amount)

5HVRXUFHHI¿FLHQF\
7KH&RPPLVVLRQFRQWLQXHGWRLPSOHPHQWPHDVXUHVWRVXSSRUWWKH16:*RYHUQPHQW5HVRXUFH(I¿FLHQF\3ROLF\
7KH&RPPLVVLRQZDVDEOHWRVKDUHDQGXVHUHVRXUFHVHI¿FLHQWO\DVLWVRI¿FHLVKRXVHGLQWKHVDPHEXLOGLQJDVRWKHU
JRYHUQPHQWDJHQFLHVDQGPLQLVWHUV7KH&RPPLVVLRQ¶VRI¿FHLVORFDWHGDW0DUWLQ3ODFH±DEXLOGLQJZKRVHHQYLURQPHQWDO
credentials include:
 VWDU1DWLRQDO$XVWUDOLDQ%XLOW(QYLURQPHQW5DWLQJ6\VWHP 1$%(56 (QHUJ\XQDVVLVWHGUDWLQJ
 VWDU1$%(56:DWHUUDWLQJ
 2QVLWHHQHUJ\PRQLWRULQJV\VWHPV
The Premier’s Memorandum M2014-08 states that Clusters are required to publish a statement of their performance against
WKH5HVRXUFH(I¿FLHQF\3ROLF\RQDQDQQXDOEDVLV7KH&RPPLVVLRQLVSDUWRIWKH3UHPLHU¶V&OXVWHUDQGWKXVQRWUHTXLUHGWR
UHSRUWVHSDUDWHO\RQLWVUHVRXUFHHI¿FLHQF\SHUIRUPDQFH
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Appendix 3: Human resources and plans
Employees
7DEOH$

1XPEHURIHPSOR\HHVE\FDWHJRU\

Band

2914-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Commissioner

1

1

1

1

Assistant Commissioners

0

0

1

0

Public Service Senior Executives

1

1

3

3

Non-Executive - FTE

16

15





Non-Executice - Part time

1

1

1

0

Total

19

15

15.4

14.8

Overseas visits
7KH&RPPLVVLRQHUDQGVWDIIGLGQRWJRRYHUVHDVRQRI¿FLDOGXW\

Privacy and personal information
The Commission complies with the requirements of the Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998 through
LPSOHPHQWDWLRQRIWKH3ULYDF\0DQDJHPHQW3ODQ7KH3ODQSURYLGHVIRUWKH&RPPLVVLRQWRXSKROGDQGUHVSHFWWKHSULYDF\
RIVWDIIDQGRWKHUVDERXWZKRPLWKROGVSHUVRQDOLQIRUPDWLRQ7KH3ODQDOVRDFWVDVDUHIHUHQFHWRROIRUVWDIIWREHVWPHHW
SULYDF\REOLJDWLRQVXQGHUWKH$FW
No internal review was conducted by or on behalf of the Commission under Part 5 of the Act in relation to entitlement of a
SHUVRQDJJULHYHGE\WKH&RPPLVVLRQ

Public interest disclosures
The Commission neither received any public interest disclosures nor did any member of the Commission make any public
interest disclosures under the Public Interest Disclosures Regulation 2011

Statement of business ethics
7KH&RPPLVVLRQ¶VVWDWHPHQWRIEXVLQHVVHWKLFVLVUHYLHZHGDQQXDOO\DQGLVDYDLODEOHRQLWVZHEVLWH,WLVDOVRLQFOXGHGLQ
FRQWUDFWGRFXPHQWVWRHQVXUHFRPPLWPHQWE\VHUYLFHSURYLGHUV

66

Natural Resources Commission Annual Report 2017-18

Senior executives
The tables show the number of public service senior executives employed at the end of the last two reporting years and their
DYHUDJHUHPXQHUDWLRQ
7DEOH$

1XPEHURIUROHVDQGJHQGHUEUHDNGRZQ

Band

2016-17

2017-18

Male

Female

Total

Male

Female

Total

Band 4 (Secretary)

0

0

0

0

0

0

Band 3 (Deputy Secretary)

0

0

0

0

0

0

Band 2 (Executive Director)

1

0

1

1

0

1

Band 1 (Director)

1

2

3

1

2

3

Total

2

2

4

2

2

4

7DEOH$

$YHUDJHUHPXQHUDWLRQ

Band

2016-17

2017-18

Range

Average
remuneration

Range

Average
remuneration

Band 4 (Secretary)

$452,251 to $522,500

NA

NA

NA

Band 3 (Deputy Secretary)

$320,901 to $452,250

NA

NA

NA

Band 2 (Executive Director)

$255,051 to $320,900

$318,710

$261,451 to $328,900

$328,000

Band 1 (Director)

$178,850 to $255,050

$204,971

$183,300 to $261,450

$226,000

1RWHRIWKH&RPPLVVLRQ¶VHPSOR\HHUHODWHGH[SHQGLWXUHLQZDVUHODWHGWRSXEOLFVHFWRUVHQLRUH[HFXWLYHV
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Appendix 4: Audit and risk management
The Commission’s internal audit program helps to ensure a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the
HIIHFWLYHQHVVRIULVNPDQDJHPHQWFRQWURODQGJRYHUQDQFHSURFHVVHV
The Commission continued the shared arrangement with the Department of Premier and Cabinet led Audit and Risk
&RPPLWWHH8QGHUWKLVDUUDQJHPHQWWKH'HSDUWPHQWDSSRLQWVWKH&KLHI$XGLW([HFXWLYHDQGWKH&RPPLVVLRQ¶V$XGLWDQG
5LVN&RPPLWWHHHQVXUHVFRPSOLDQFHZLWKUHTXLUHPHQWVRIWKH7UHDVXU\3ROLF\3DSHU733
,QWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRGWZRQHZLQGHSHQGHQWPHPEHUVZHUHLQGXFWHGWRWKH6KDUHG$XGLWDQG5LVN&RPPLWWHH7KH
&RPPLWWHHPHW¿YHWLPHVDQGRI¿FHUVIURPWKH$XGLW2I¿FHRI16:DWWHQGHGPHHWLQJV
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Internal Audit and Risk Management Attestation Statement for the
2017-2018 Financial Year for Natural Resources Commission
I, Dr John Keniry AM, am of the opinion that the Natural Resources Commission has internal audit
and risk management processes in operation that are, compliant with the eight (8) core
requirements set out in the Internal Audit and Risk Management Policy for the NSW Public Sector,
specifically:
Core Requirements
Risk Management Framework
1.1
The agency head is ultimately responsible and accountable for risk management
in the agency
1.2
A risk management framework that is appropriate to the agency has been
established and maintained and the framework is consistent with AS/NZS ISO
31000:2009.
Internal Audit Function
2.1
An internal audit function has been established and maintained
2.2
The operation of the internal audit function is consistent with the International
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing
2.3
The agency has an Internal Audit Charter that is consistent with the content of the
‘model charter’.
Audit and Risk Committee
3.1
An independent Audit and Risk Committee with appropriate expertise has been
established
3.2
The Audit and Risk Committee is an advisory committee providing assistance to
the agency head on the agency’s governance processes, risk management and
control frameworks, and its external accountability obligations
3.3
The Audit and Risk Committee has a Charter that is consistent with the content of
the ‘model charter’.

Compliant
Complaint

Compliant
Compliant
Compliant

Compliant
Compliant

Compliant.

Membership
This Audit and Risk Committee was established under a Treasury approved shared arrangement
from the 1 January 2013 with the following departments/statutory bodies:

Department of Premier and Cabinet.
The Chair and Members of the Audit and Risk Committee 2017:
Independent Chair, Arthur Butler, 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2017
Independent Member 1, Bruce Turner, 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2017
Independent Member 2, Gerardine Brus, 2 October 2013 to 31 December 2017.
The Chair and Members of the Audit and Risk Committee 2018:

Independent Chair, Gerardine Brus, January 2018 to December 2020.

Independent Member 1, Christine Feldman, December 2017 to November 2020

Independent Member 2, Gary Dinnie, October 2017 to April 2021.




I, Dr John Keniry AM declare that this Internal Audit and Risk Attestation is made on behalf of the
following controlled entities (or subsidiaries):

Natural Resources Commission (controlled entity)

Natural Resources Commission Staff Agency.

Dr John Keniry
Commissioner

30 June 2018

Level 6, 52 Martin Place, Sydney NSW 2000 Australia. All correspondence to: GPO Box 5341, Sydney NSW 2001
Telephone 02 9228 4844 Facsimile 02 9228 4970 Website: www.nrc.nsw.gov.au ABN 36 106 334 821
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Appendix 5: GIPA Act
The Government Information (Public Access) Act 2009 (GIPA Act) requires agencies to provide access to government
LQIRUPDWLRQDQGHQFRXUDJHVSURDFWLYHUHOHDVHRIVXFKLQIRUPDWLRQ
As required by the GIPA Act, the Commission provided the following information on its website:
 publication guide
 documents tabled in Parliament by or on behalf of the Commission
 policy documents
 disclosure log of access information
 UHJLVWHURIJRYHUQPHQWFRQWUDFWV
Where information is not available on the website, an informal request may be made to the Commission’s Right to
,QIRUPDWLRQ2I¿FHU:KHUHLQIRUPDWLRQLVQRWDYDLODEOHRQWKHZHEVLWHRUQRWSURYLGHGE\LQIRUPDOUHTXHVWDIRUPDODFFHVV
DSSOLFDWLRQFDQEHPDGHWRWKH&RPPLVVLRQ
In the reporting period, the Commission:
 reviewed its program for proactive release of information to identify the kind of information that can be made publicly
available, and made relevant information available on its website
 did not receive any informal request for information
 GLGQRWUHFHLYHRUUHIXVHDQ\IRUPDODFFHVVDSSOLFDWLRQ
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Appendix 6: Legislation and legal change
Legislation relevant to Commission functions
(As at 1 July 2018)
 Natural Resources Commission Act 2003
 Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016
 Crown Land Management Act 2016
 Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979
 Fisheries Management Act 2012
 Forestry Act 2012
 Local Land Services Act 2013
 Threatened Species Conservation Act 1995
 Water Management Act 2000
 Water Management Amendment Act 2018

New legislation relevant to Commission functions
(Assented to during 2017-18)


Water Management Amendment Act 2018

Repealed legislation that were relevant to Commission functions
(Repealed during 2017-18)
 State Environmental Planning Policy No. 77 - Coastal Protection
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